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1. Name of Propaty
higoric name Downtown Danville Higoric District
other names'ste numbea VDHR File No. 108-111

2. Location

dred & numbe Dovmtomn area Man Sred ad interssding dregts Roughly bounded by
Memarid Drive ad High, Patton, add Ridgedreds nd for publication H/A

city or town Danville vicinity N/A
daeVirginia code VA  county Danville (City)  code 590

Zip code 24541



Downtown Danville Higtoric Didtrict Danville (City). Va.
County and Sate

3. SategFaedera Agency Certification

As the desgnated authority under the Nationd Historic Presarvation Act of 1986, as anended,
1 hadoy certify thet this X nomination request for determination of digibility meds the
documentation dandards for registering propaties in the Nationd Regigter of Historic Places and
medts the procedurd and professond requiremants st forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion,
the propaty JL. meds does not medt the Nationd Regigter Criteria. | recommend thet this
property be congdered sgnificant naiondly X daewide localy. ( See
continuation shedt for additiona comments)

Signaj "l of certifying official Dete

Sate or Federd agency andbureau

In my opinion, the property meds does not medt the Nationd Regider criteria
( See continuation sheet for additiond comments)

Sgnaure of commenting or other official Dae
Sate or Federd agency and bureau

4. Nationa Park Sarvice Certification
ftatered in tfii
I, hadoy oartify that this prapaty is “tioaal flenclatc

ataed inthe Naiona Regider
See continuation shedt.
delermined eigible for the
Nationd Regider
See continuation shed.
detemined nat digible for the
Nationd Regider

removed from the Nationd Regider

other (explain):

Sgnaure of Kegpar  Date of Action



Downtown Danville Higtoric Digtrict
5. Classification

Ownerdhip of Property
(Check as many boxes as goply)
X privae
X public-loca
public-Sate
X public-Federd

Number of Resources within Property
Contributing  Noncontributing

48 26 buildings
gtes
dructures
objects

48 26 Totd

Danville (City). Va.
County and State

Category of Property
(Check only one box)
building(s)
X digrict
dte
dructure
object

Number of contributing resources previoudy liged in the Nationd

Regiger 2

Name of rdaed multiple propaty listing (Enter "N/A" if property is not pat of amultiple

propaty listing.) N/A

6. Fundion or Use

Historic Functions (Enter categariesfrom ingructions)

Ca: COMMERCE
COMMERCE
COMMERCE
GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENT
INDUSTRY
SOCIAL
DOMESTIC

Sub: specidty dore
depatment dore
financid indtitution

office
post office
manufacturing facility
meding hal
hotdl

Current Functions (Enter categoriesfrom indructions)

Ca: COMMERCE
COMMERCE
COMMERCE
GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENT
SOCIAL
DOMESTIC
LANDSCAPE

Sub: spedidty dore
depatment dore
financid inditution

govammat office
post office
medting hal
multiple dweling
parking lot



Downtown Danville Higtoric Didtrict Danville (City®, Va.
County and Sate

7. Dexription

Architecturd Classfication (Enter categories from ingtructions)

Romanesoue Reviva
Late Gothic Reviva
(s== continuation shedt)

Materids (Enter categories from ingtructions)

foundation BRICK
roof METAL
waJsBRICK
STONE
other TERRA COTTA
CONCRETE

Narrative Inscription (Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more
continugtion shedts)
8 Saamat of Sgnificance

Applicable Nationa Regiger Criteria(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria quaifying
the property for Nationd Regiger listing)

X A Propaty isassodaed with events that have mede a Sgnificant contribution to the
broad pettemsof our history.

B Propaty isassodaed with the lives of parsons sgnificant in our past.

X C Propaty embodesthe didinctive characterigics of atype, period, or methad of
congmction or represants the work of a mader, or possesses high artidic vaues,
or rgpresants a Sgnificant and didinguishable entity whose componants lack
individua digtinction.

D Propaty hesyidded, or islikely to yidd information important in prehidory or
history.



Domtomn Danville Higaric Didrict DamUe (City™, Va.
Caunty and Sate
Critaia Cangdaaions (Mark " X" in dJ the baxes that gpply.)

onned by ardJgaus inditution o used for rdJgous purposes

renovedfr omits orignd location.

abirthplacea agae

a amnday.

arexondmaed building, dojedt, o dmdure

a ammanadive praoaty.

less then 50 years of age a adhievad sgnificance within the ped 50 years

OTMMmUOm>

Aress of Sgnificance (Enta categoriesfr omingmdiong
ARCHITECTURE
COMMERCE
GOVERNMENT
ETHNIC HERITAGE: BLACK
SOCIAL HISTORY
INDUSTRY

Peaiad of Sgnificance 187519443

Sonificant Dates

Sonificant Parsn (Camplee if Criterion B ismarked above
N/A

Culturd Affiliation

Archited/BuUde (see artinuation dhest)

Narraive Saamat of Sgnificance (Explain the dgnificance of the prgpaty on ace ar mae
aontinuation sheds)
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7. Dexription
Architecturd Classification (continued)

Tudor Reviva
Neodlasscd
Colonid Revivd
Georgian Revivd
Craftaman
Misson

Art Deco
Modeme
Modem

No Style

8. Saemat of Sgnificance
Architect/Builder (continued)

Anderson, K. Pettit, Charles G., Jr.
Anderson, P. L. Poindexter, William M.
Angle-Blackford & Co. Pritchett, Albert G.
Blauvdt, Henry J. Undawood, H. A. & Co.
Cadlina Sed & Iron Co.

Cater, J. Codes

Clarson, R. E.

Detrick & Pearson

Erwin & Wes

Evans, Alfred F.

Farris, Fred F.

Ftzgerald, Thomes B.

Fugua Congmction Co.

Garric Congmction Co.

Heard, J. Bryat

Howel, Claude K.

Janes E. Robert.

Orchard, Charles,

Osomne H. A.& Co.
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NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION

Simmary Dexription and Inteyrity Satamant

The Downtown Danville Higtoric Didtrict indudes a wide range of commeraid, industrid, and
indimtiond building types datingfromthe 1870sto the present.’ Maogt buildings in the didtrict
rise to two or mare dories in haght and are of load-bearing masonry congmction. Although
may buildings are agtyligic or utilitarian in desgn, others sow the influence of popular
ningteanth- and tweantieth-cantury syles including the Romanesgue Reviva, Late Gothic Revival,
Tudor Revival, Neoclasscd, Colonid Reviva, Georgian Reviva, Craftaman, Mission, Art
Deco, Modeame, and various pos-World Wer || modem styles. Some buildings combine severd
yles or borrowfromexatic traditions such as Egyptian architecture. A variety of materids ad
decoraive finishesare found in the didtrict: red, buff, pressed, molded, and corbded brick;
indiganous rough-hewn done marble, and sculpted white limestone glazed and méatte,
palychrome and granitic, plan ad richly omametd taracottay presssd ad ced med
omamat, and comgated metd sding and roofing; plate, prism, ad achitecturd glass,
concrele, ducco, ad tile. SiU to be ssen on some dreds ae vitrified brick pavers,
cobblestones, and granite curbing.

Many buildingsin the digtrict retain historic facade dements such as comices and uppar-gory
windows, piers, and decoraivefini shes.Some buildings dso have erly or origind dret-levd
display windows and entries.  These bmldings are genardly classified as contributing to the
higtoric character of the didtrict. Other higtoric buildings have lost important character-defining
facade features, or have hed thar upper dories conceded under modam dteaions. These
gedly dtaed higoric buildings and non-higoric (post-1943) buildings ae classfied as
noncontributing to the historic character of the district. The modemization of a building's dret-
level shop front, in and of itsdf, is nat dways consdered 0 compromidng as to render a
buUding noncontributing. Based on these criteria, the didtrict contains a totd of forty-eight
contributing buildings and twenty-Sx non-contributing buildings for a total of seventy-four
reniu-ces  In addition to the seventy-four previoudy unlisted resources, the didtrict indudes two
resources dreedy ligedin the Nationd Regigter: the Hotel DanvUle & 600 Main Sregt and the
Danwille Municipa BuUding a 418 Petton Street.

Architectural Analyds

The higtoric architecturd character of DanviUes downtown is entirdly the product of the city's
tobacoo- and textUebesad prosperity during the seventy-five years following the Civil War.
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Whet litUe is knoan abaut the architedure of antdjdlum Danwville is desnedfr omhidaric
iUudraions maps and ss/sad paiad acoounts  The mag ddal Jad acoount is Thampsmn
Cdaman's desxiption of DamUe in 189, Cdaman desxibad a cammunity of snalJsEe log
andframebuildings dusaed dmad exdusvdy dang Man Sredfromtheriver to aoaut Ridge
Sred”™ Asdgidad on an 187 kdadh nmgp of the town, these buUdings hed thetypical
damedic fam of the peiod, with thar lang devations pardld to Man Sred ad thar ggble
ads papadada” Maresubdantid condmdion mey have bean disotouraged by the tauaus
fartunes o the rdativdy young tomn.  Cdeman recdled anly a handful of bridk smdures
Ong a partidy-oooupied threesary brick buUding, wes nidknamed PannUI's Fally, presumebly
in rdlaence to the judgmant of a devdgpa who wauld inved in a toan thaet migt lose aut to
its regona compditars

With the acaming of the railrced in the mid-1830s ad the daubling of the toam's pgpulation in
the goen of afev years DavUlewes trandarmed into an impatant regond aater. The
tdoaoo waréhouse and fadary didrids on the nath and sauth 9des of Man Sred bagen to take
dgoe Caonsdaadle infarmation survives on the gopeerance of ane antdodJum tdoaoo fadary,
thet of J. W. & C. G. Hdland, which wes usad during the CivU War as a prison for Fedad
officers Locaed on the natheeg come of Union and Soring dredts the Hdland Faday wes

a threedary bridk building with attic and besamat daries and ggoped pargpds an thefrontand
rer gebles’ The Hdland Faday ad its antanpaaries etablihead the multi-doried,
pargoaed fam that wes to dharadeize DarviUes indudrid architedure through the remainde

of the nindexth oatury.

DanviUeés coonmigrdd didria dso eqoaiencad goamh during the late antdodlum peaiod. A
phacygoh bdieved to have baemn taken in the 18335 dhons two commaad buildings an love
Man Sred. These andlfr amebuildings differ fr omthe buUdings $1oamn an the 1827 mep in
that thar gable ends face the dred, dlomng far a mare intensve ue of eqpasve dred
frontage’ Caongedion near theriver axd cand had baoome 0 aaute by the early 18535 (e/en
befare the acoming of the railroed), that the toamn's busnesmen urgad the Masonic Ladge to
aondmd its nav quartea's a the coma of Main axd Union greds in ade to draw desdgomeant
up Man Sred HUl. The condmdion of the Masnic Tanple illudrates the inareesng
achitedurd sophidication of Davilés antebdlum dvic leedas  Rathe then antruding the
desgn of the impartant building to a locd builder, the Masans advartisad in Virgnia axd Narth
Cardina pgoasad remavad prgposasfromsavad ardhiteds They dose a desgn by Jdn
W. Cody of Radgh, the sn and busness assodate of ae of Narth Cardinas leeding

antebdlum buUda's Dabney Codoy. Caodoy desgnad a aubic bridk buUding with a dauble
bradkded comicg a rooftop maonitar, and a aurious doubleardh maif an the Man Sred

facade
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The pece of devdopmant =t in the 1850s resumed in the 1870s after the decade-long interrgption
of the CivU War and itsimmediae aftermath. The BearsMap of 1877 and higoric photogrgohs
indicate that the commerad form introduced during the late antebdlum period, with long,
narrow-fronted bulJdings extending beck into long, narrow commercid |ots, became even more
esablished after the war. Main Stret took on its present gopearance, with buildings of varying
haghts, dyles ad maerids danding Sde by dde aeding continuous dredtscgpes The
resulting visud confuson engendared a competition among merdhants to catch the eye of the
cudomer, leading to a profusion of brightly-colored sgnege and heavUy omamented facedes ad
pagoas Thefirstto clam the field inthe architecturd swvegpdiekes wiss the Pace BuUding &
322-332 Main. Erected in 1875, the three-dory brick buUding feetured an omate five-baycad-
iron facade with an arched Sgnege pand in the pargoat of the canter bay. A "mdicated” pier
a the wes comer and a angleflutediron column are the only original decorative fegtures now
visgble on what is probadly downtown Danville's ddest commerad building.

By the early twentieth century, the Pace BuUding was joined by other equdly ogtentaious
achitecturd confections. Many of theserdied on Itdianae-ingoired arched pargpatsfor ther
visud effect. A surviving example isthe Uvay sable and mixed reta) block built a 118-130
South Union bewean 1904 and 1910. In addition to the perky arched peargpet over the entrance
to the former dable are a st of other pargpets, one with an dmost Barogue pedmented
gopexrance  Other retail, hotel, and govemment buildings built dong Main Srest employed an
aray of turrets and cupolas for visud affect. An obsarver ganding a the comer of Main ad
Floyd in 1910 could look up & the corbeUed comer turret of the Romanesgue Reviva-gyle
Municipal BuUding and down Main Stredt to the bristling gables, chimney stacks and octagond
clock tower of the Romanexgue Revivd-dyle United Siates Court House and Pogt Office, the
corbded comices and turret of the three-dory Morgan Hotdl, the seven-dory domed comer tower
of the Burton Hotel, and the Chateauesgue turret of the Dudley BuUding, with comer demants
inspired by the chinmey dacks of Chambord. (Only the Dudley Building a 434-442 Man
urvivestoday, minus itsturret.)’ Perhgps the mod outlandish bid for the pedestrian's atertion
wes paperaed by W. P. Hodnett, who sometime in the early twentieth century added onion
domes to the pargpet of his dggatmant dore on lower Main Stredt.”

Gradudly through the lae ningteanth and early twentieth centuries, DanviU€és busness
community replaced older frame buUdings with fireproof masonry constmction, mativated by the
perennid threet of fire. Mog fireproof consimction was brick. In the twentieth century, ded
and reinforced concrete frames came into use in buildings such as the 1921 James A. Rorer
Memorid BuUding a 125 South Union, the 1917 Chesgpeske & Potomac Tdegphone Company
a 560 Paton, and the city'stwo 1920s skyscrgpers, the Masonic BuUding a 106 South Union
and the Hotd DawviUe & 600 Main. Concrete block was advertised as a building materid as
ealy as 1908 incity directories, but its first Sgnificant use in the downtown gopearsto be the
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white Umetanefacad 1987 Wadwarth's Building a 501 Main.' Bridk tile blodk wes usad in
the condmdion of the 123 F. W. Tomes & Sin Fungd Parlar & 635 Man ad is eqossd
a therexr of &7 Main, a 1905 auamndoUe deda ship ad repair shap.

A vaidy of maeaidsweae usd to dad dovitormn DamviUes masary buildings Typicaly,
ammeadd buUdngsamploy dandard brickwark in a deoorative fadhion in pargpds facade
pies and aound windov goenings Sotmeof the Nt aredtive bridkwark can be dosarvad in
the pargpat of theca. 1830 building a 533535 Main, which aambines aorbdUng, haund's toath
ddier coursss tumbled coursss and dantlHike coiffses The fing réa) etdbUdmeants of the
late nindeath cantury and thefir stdecade of the twantieth were faosd in sodth pressad bridk
with deooraive courses of mdded brick ad tara aatta. The 1822 Kingoff Building & 310 Man
ad the 1901 Dudley Building & 434442 Main are prime eamples of this reetmat. Ore of
the erlies and mat naable urviving uses of deooraive taraadta is the beautifully aafted
buU's heed thet pears autfromadraular recess an the Narth FHoyd devation of the 1830 City
Marke (howv awing of the Hald DarvUle & 600 Main), a symbd of the buildings arigna
fundion asa mest markd."

Savad buldings of the 1990s meke edansve ue of tara adta as edeaia dadding ad
anamat. Theterday 127 Had DamUea 80 Man hes a 2-1/2-9ary bese faoed in
Faklaed gay tara adta that smulates granite blodks ad it festures granitic tarracdta quans
aomicsswith mdded lion heeds andfree-standingpargpd ums The 121 Janess A. Rae
Meamarid BuUding a 123 South Union (the offices of the Danville Regdea and Beg is attirdy
dad in granitic tara adta thet isaso usad to fomflutedpUag”™ an the 9de devation, fluted
adumns in antis an thefr ont,eridhed window surrcunds mdded Uan heeds in the comicg, ad
thefigur edf a nendooy in place of a keygane ove thefrontatrance Pdydrame broan, red,
aange aeam, ad blue tara adta is usad to foom digolay cases ad afr ontpartico caling. The
tengay 192 Masmic BuUding an the acoma of Man and South Union is faoed in dazad white
teracdta pands ad hes 2ylizad taraadta pUage capitals and a large saulpted goreed eede
ova the man buUding etry (symbdic of the Ramnen " gle Ladgeof Masong. Anahe tara
adttafacsd building of nae isthe 192 Southen Amusamant BuUding & 59 Main. The wo-
day bulding hesan degant Neodasscd facade of Jazad aceam-adared tara adtta thet rises
toafrieze of purple and aeam snegs ad arow offree-standingums

Dontomn DanvUles higaric commaad  buildings diten réain orignd interior festures
Fnidhes ad deorative trestmants varied acoording to the type of bushess Thetwogay
ammadd blok a 200208 Narth Union, acongmaded in 1908 arignaly housed two hardwere
dares agooay, ad adahing dore  The dathing dare rdans a pressad mdd adling ad

a mezanire darr with tumed baude's and deoraive nend pads the aha dares are nae
utilitarian, with beeded tangueand-grocove adlings and (in higaric viens plain boerd shdving
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lining the walJs" A ndadlefesture of 200205 Nath Union isa handgparaed has o freight
deatar adivated by a sdam o pulleys geers and drive shafts  The uppa daories of
ammeadd buUdings ware usad as office goace ad ladgngs or, as in the case of the ssoond
day of 214 Noarth Union, they ware let unfinished and usad far darage

The bridk tdoaoo and tedUe fadaries an High, Floyd, and Soring dreds d<o ggadly hae
unfinihed interiars with large wark floor ssuppated by wooden pods  The large tdoaoo
faday of Carad & Covingion, aondmdead a 532 Soring in 1834, festures a partiadly endosed
ama gar with sample woaod raJs (evocative of the plaines vanaaular damedic congmdion

o the paiad) ad remants o a firg-gary office with a beeded board wainsoat, caldmined
plade wdls ad a firgplace Theinteriars of the 1907 Maaodk Manufaduring Campany an
Nath Floyd are ssmenhetfiner then ahe indudrid buUdingsin the didrid, with planed,
damfaad pads in thewak goaces and deooraive beedad tangueandgroove wel s and adJings
miUad door and window surraunds and afir eplacewith a adonneited mantd in the office wing.

Architeduraly donificant interiars are faund in doartoamn DanvUles fhittema and govsammeant
buildings The interiars o the firg two buildings of the Ramen Eage Ladge of Mass festured
replendent wood carving and welJ and adling painting  In the early 1905 the lodge bulk its
third and presant buUding and anae again par”™ no eqoanse in the furbishing of its pubUc ad
private oaces  The building is entered thraugh a marble Idoby lined with dxgos ad digolay
cass A par of devatarsriseto a tenthHfloor vedibule a ane end of which isa balraom with
dassdd ddaling ad an adedra gdlay. At the vedibulés aha ed is the ladge meding
room, an amphithesterlike goace fadng a dage  Hanking the gage are plUars with latus
cgpitals brightly painted gohinxes and dosats cgopad with pyramids oserheed isa glded an
dik with cutgoreed wings

Mare prasac but equdy rdinad, are the interiars of the 1927 Munigpd Building and the 1932
Pat Office, bah desgned by Danwville archited J. Bryant Heerd.  The Munidpd Building is

ataa thraugh a ldoby with mdicated plade walsand Daric ddumns ad piladea's Broed
darcasesr i seto the fourthfl oor coundJ dnambes lined with arcadesand fame'ly iUuminated

by a large syUdht (now aoncedled by a drgoped aaling). The Pogt Office Idoby festures mearble
floors axd pUadeas a frieze with patarae ad trigyphike danants axd Art Dexo branze giUes
aboe therons of lodk baxes Themae utiUtarian goaoss o the Pt Office are daaJad in
dandard erlytwantidh-oantury  Tressury Dgoartmet manngs with high tangueand-graove
wansas and twolevd vaults

Numeraus architeds and builde's partiapated in the dedgomant of Danvillés domtoan during
the late nindeanth and erly twantigdh canturies Faremod amag the aty’s buildersin the years
immediatdy foJoning the CivU War wes Thamas Batan Fitzgerad, a native of Hdlifax County,
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Va, who edeblished a brickyard in North DawiUein the late 1860s  Over the foUowing
decades Ftzgardd and his sucoessors N. A. ad T. J. Ftzgerdd, buUt many of the finer
resdences on uppa Main Stredt, as well as churches tobacco and textile factories, ad
commerdd buUdings The Romanesgue Reviva 1890 City Market on North Foyd Strest wes
built by Ftzgerdd (dthough it was desgned by Wadhington architect Wiliam M. Poindexter).
It islikedy thet severd of the tobaooo factories on High and North Floyd dregtswere bult by
Ftzgerdd, and it is probadle that some of the older commercid buildings on Main Street can
be asribed to the Fitzgeralds thriving congmction busness”™  Other important buUdas and
achitedts of the period indluded Charles A. BalJou, Danville's City Enginear, ad the firms of
Graham Brothes and Deitrick & Pearson. A contractor of note was English-bom Charles
Orchard, "Deder in Mantds, TUes, Grates, Interior Marble Work, and Contractor for Plagtering,
Conaee Hoors, Walks, Etc." Probably many decordive finishesin the dovntovn were the
work of Orchard and his thirty to axty employess  The textured succo facade of the Pythian
Building & 119-121 South Union Strest mey be atributed to Orchard, 9nce it was added in the
1910s when the building contained Orchard's showrooms™ Orchard aso worked on the 1912
Elks Home a 560 Main Strest.

Beginning in the 1910s two architects-Charles G. Pettit, Jr. and J. Bryant Heard-mede notable
contributions to Danville's downtown. Pettit came to DawviUe in 1909 to open an office for the
Lynchburg firm of McLaughlin, Petitt, and Johnson, and from 1909 to 1913 he was involved
in the desgn and condmction of a least Sx buUdings in the downtown. Two of these buUdings
-the 1909-1910 Herman BuUding & 515517 Main and the 1912-1913 BUcs Home & 560 Main-
aurvive in thar more or less origind form, and one aha—the 1912 Virginia Hardware Company
a 426 Man—auvives in an dtered condition.

Foreamos among Pettit's downtown projects isthe soectacular Elks Home. The exterior of the
four-gory bulUding condsts of abundle of coumnar dements visually linked together & the top
by dhannded brickwork and a wide chevron band of green and yeJow tiles. The columnar

massang carries through to the lobby, lined with two-gtory piers connected by a geomdric datted
mezzanine raling. Thexe features, and dso the planar qualty of the front porch and goron,

punciugted by concrete and tile bollards, suggest Pettit was famiUar with certain buUdings of
Frank Lloyd Wright such as the Larkin BuUding and Unity Temple.  In contragt to the
modamniam of the Elks Home exterior and lobby isthe edectic desgn of ather interior oeces

Thelavish plager omamant of the ballroom-cherabs, reclining nudes, catouches, garlands ad
mugcd indmmats—the encmdted proscenium opening, and the eared surrounds of the French
doors lining the bah-oom wals are dasscd in derivation. Dark roof beams daned glass
windows and high+backed thrones give the fourth-floor lodge room a solemn medieva agpect.

Pettit's Herman Building facade exhibits some of the geometric exparimentation thet charactoizes
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the BUcs Home, with repetitive brick and succo pands, broad expanses of prism glass (now
removed), and architrave-like dements formed by projecting brick courses that fiame the uppear-
dory windows Beforeit was covered over, the narow four-story sregtfrontof the Virginia
Hardware Company featured large industrid metd windows sgparated by brick spendrds with
diamondkdhgped acoent blocks.  The buUding was destribed in 1913 as bang "of null
condmction . . . practicaly gassfronted."™ Tragicaly missngfromthe Pettit legacy isthe
demalished 1912 Arcade Building & 520-522 Main Strest, which featured a 175-long, column-
lined, skylit concoiurss, and a guccoed columnar facade with Mission-gyle accents.”

Wheaess Charles Pettit's prolific period of activity goparently soanned a mere hdf-decade, J.

Bryant Heard practicedf romthe mid-1910s through the 1930s  Heard established a DawviUe
officeof his Lynchburg architecturd firm in 1916. A year or two eerUer, Heard co-desgned
with locd achitect Albert G. Pritchett the Hotd Ledand a 621 Main, a four-gory brick

building with dasscd detalling. Heard desgned other dassica buUdings in the downtown such
as the Colonid Revival 1923 F. W. Townes & Son Funerd Parlor & 635 Main and the three-

dory 1920 MiUer BuUding & 423-425 Main. His mog important work in the idiom is the
"opulent-looking’ 1927 Danville Municipa Building & 418 Peaton.* Colossd engagaed lonic
columns march aoross the white Umestone facade of the Municipa BuUding, and broad geps
swvegp downfromburnished entry doors to the intersection of Patton and South Union dregts.

In the early 19305 Heard began to desgn in a sombar monumeanta verson of the Art Deco
dyle. The DawUle Pogt Office & 700 Main was the principd product of Heard's new goproach.
The 1930s American Nationd Bank a& 336 Main and the 1937 Woolworth's BuUding & 501
Main ae other Heard desgns that feature white limesone facing and disorete Art Deco
omamat. At leedt ten extant downtown buUdingsin DaviUe were desgned by Heard during
the period 1915 to 1940 or are dtiibutable to him on syUdic grounds  Of all DanvUIes
achitects and buUdes, Heard mede the grestest contribution to the buUt environmeant of the
downtown.

Devdopmatt dowed in DanwvUI€es downtovra after the early 1930s part of a nationwide
dagndion in private congmction brought on by the Depresson.  After World Wer 11,
devdopment shifted to Danville's suburbs, and downtown retalJas sought to lure thar former
cugomers back by modernizing buUding facades.  Often this tactic led to the concedlmeant or
destmction of origind architecturd features. Two early face-lifts were carried out a 334 Main
and 115 South Union, where streamlined concrete facedes with metd and glass-block windows
were adhared to earUer buUdings  The modemizations continue to the present, and with the
pressure for automabUe parking, they represent the main threats to the architecturd character of
downtown DanviUe
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Inventory

Properties in the inventory are organized dphabeticaly by dredt (disegarding prefixes such as
"North," "South," etc.) and numericaly by address. The heading for each entry Uds the higtoric
or common name of the property, the date or date range of congmction, the VDHR file number
for the property, and the desgnation "CB" or "NB," for the datusof each building as @ther a
"contributing buUding" or a "noncontributing building.” The body of the entry destribes the
architecturd features of the property (gory height, condmction materid, style or form, exterior
finish, interior features when examined, etc.) and provides patinent historica data Some date
ranges are besad on an examination of the Sanbom Map Company mgasfor DawiUe Thee
mgps ware issued in 1886, 1890, 1894, 1899, 1904, 1910, 1915, 1920, ad after 1929. Otiier
dates are derivedfrompriinary or sscondary sources that gopear in the bibliography of this report
and ae nated in the gtefiles.

1 125N. Floyd St. DawiUe City Auditorium. 1932. 108-0111-001. CB.

The DanwiUe City Auditorium is a four-story dretcher-
bond brick and concrete buUding. The Art Deco styling

of the building is most goparat in the detalling of

the conarele facade piers, the pandrds betwean windows,
and the pargpet on thefront (Floyd Stret devation), which
havefl uting,chevrons, and plant-like motifs. At the rear
of the buUding isalarge arched opening onto Soring Stret
providing acoessto an acaded parking garage Other
exterior fegtures of the building indude large metd
windows with centrd avning sections, and Art Deco Ught
fixtures a thefront entries

Theprincipa interior goece isthe auditorium itsalf, which
IS lined with pUadas withfl utedcgpitds and hes

origind seating and arear bacony. Over the auditoriumis
a gymnadum with an open ged roof tmss and an overhead
mnning track. The building dso contains offices with the
origina tranducent glass doors, rest rooms with early tile
floors andfittings,and basement-levd workshops

The DanwiUe City Auditorium is the principa puoUc
auditorium in the downtown area of Danville, Virginia,
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Desgned by DawUle architect J. Bryant Heard, the building
hes provided the city goece for public entertainments
conventions, and sporting events Snce its congmction in
1932. The building is dso noteble for its Art Deco desgn
and integrd parking garage The building wes built by the
congmction firm of P. J. Anderson and do originaly
contained an amory.

2. 100Block N. Floyd St. Morotock Manufactiuing Company. 1907.  108-0111-002. CB.

The Morotock Manufacturing Compeny is a four-gory brick
building with a gale roof, brick and sone foundations, ad
-heed 6/6 sesh windows. Thefront (Floyd Strest)
devaion of the building is defined by a three-dtory office
wing with afive-storydar and devaor tower thet
formerly supported a water tank. The entranceto the office
wing is s back into an acchway. The man buUding
bHod<—the factory itsdf—hes two entrances that are
shdtered under wooden porches A sralJ brick boiler room
extendsfromthe main block a its northeest comer.

The interior of the main block is characterized by large
work goeoss intergpersed with chamfered wood posts. The
offices in the front wing have decordive treeded
tongue-and-groove walls and cellings, interior windows, ad
one surviving colonnetted mantd.  Other features of the
interior indude heat-activated metd fire doors, early
dgnage, ad ealy devaor mechinery.

The 1907 Morotock Manufacturing Company is a notabdle textUe
factory thet retains mary early features including a

water tower/devator tower, offices, and work soaces The
buUding was origindly usad for the manufacture of

ovaals lae it contained a grocary and bowling aJey.

In addition to its sgnificance as a building type, the

factory is achitecturady Sgnificant for the quelJty of

its brick congmction and detailing. Organized in 1899,

the company produced Bandana [sic]. New South, Chief, Southem,
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BUc High Back, and Nationd brand overdls. The factory
weas condmcted by the Danville firm of Deitrick & Pearson.

3. 123S Floyd St. 1920s1930s  108-0111-003. CB.

The automohbile repair dop isaonedory dretcher-bond
brick buUding with a gable roof with pergpets ad
skylights, and segmenta-heed 6/6 sash windows. Along the
north sde of the building is an early onebay brick garage
In thefront pargpet is a ssgmantd-heed opening. The
interior contains a large gpen work area under an exposad
wood and ged tmssroof. In the north comer of the
interior is atwo-levd office and gorage unit with a

beeded tongue-and-groove wansoot.

Probably buUt intiie 1920s or 1930 tiiis building hes
saved continuoudy for the repair and sarvicing of
auomabUes and buses

4. 539 High St. Wedon E. WUliamson Tobecoo Factory. 1876, 108-0111-004. CB.

Thisthree-dtory brick buUding hes a gadle roof with

front and rear pargpets (thef rontpargoet hes a corbded
cornice and recessed dgnege pand) and ssgmentd-heed 6/6
saeh windows with decorative arches over thefrontwindows.
The dde devations are characterized by rows of numerous
windows. Off the rear isan early two-dory brick addition.
The partly partitioned interior is intergoerssd with wood
pods

Danville tobacconis Wedon E. Williamson built this tobecco
factory in 1876. On the 1886 Sanbom Map of DanwviUe the
building gopears as the J. C. Green's Edae Dry Prizery, a
factory for the pressurizing of tobacco. The mgp indicates
thet the building originalJy hed iron-clad shutters and an
office cubicdle in the northeest comer of the interior. The
two-dory rear addition wes mecke inthe early 1890s The
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buUding served as a tobacco factory untU the second
querter of the twentieth century when it was converted to
commedd dorage  In more recant years the building
saved as afiimiture warehouse for Schewd Furniture.

5. 543-547 High St. J. T. Stoval Tobacco Factory. 1876.  108-0111-005. CB.

This three-gtary, five-courseAmerican-bond brick

buUding hes a gable roof with ggoped pargpets on the front
and back and gebled dormers, ssgmenta-heed 2/2 and 6/6
windows, ad a later brickflueon the south gdbleend. A
threegtory  brick addition was mede to the northeast comer
of the origind buUding around 1915, giving the overal
buildmg its presant L-shaped footprint (the addition may
incorporate part of aca. 1830 tobacco factory that dood on
the same dte). The addition hes 6/6 sash windows and brick
of varying hedes Other exterior features of the buUding
include barred besamat windows, a possible roof-top housng
for an devaor mechaniam, and gnege for the Schewd
Fumiture Company.

This tobaoco factory was buUt in 1876 by tobecoonist J. T.
Stovdl. In 1886 it was owned by the Kinney Tctloecoo Company,
a New Y ork-based company thet owned five tobacco factories
in DawviUe & the end of the ningteenth century. The

Kinney Tobacco Company, destribed as the world's largest
dgaete manufacturer of itstime,joined saverd other

tobacoo companies to form the American Tobacco Company in
1890. Thisfactory was devoted to Semming tobacco, or
removing the leaffromthe sem prior to further processng.
Betwean 1904 and 1910, the buUding was conveated to the
manufacture of overdls. A wing was added onto the et Sde
thet goparently incorporated a portion of the tolbacoo factory

of T. J. Corbin, buUt between 1877 and 1886. Intiiemid-
twentieth century the building was ussd as a warehouse by

the Schewd Fumiture Company.
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6. 606 High St. E. 20ti c. 108-0111-006. CB.

This one-gory,five-courseAmerican-bond brick bulUding

hes a 9hed roof, ssgmentd-heed door and window gpeningson
thefront (south) devation, 6/6 and modem 2/2 sseh

windows, and a 31elJ conarete block addition on the west
dde.

This buUding istypicd of the sandJ-scde commercid
acchitecture built in Danvillé's downtown during the early
twentieth century.

7. 608 High St. Thomas & McAdams Tobacco Fectory. 1830, 108-0111-007. CB.

This threegoryfive-courseAmerican-bond brick

building hes a gddle roof with decordive pargpets ad
segmentd-heed 6/6 sash windows.  Thefrontof the building
was ducooad a some point during thefirst haf of the
twentieth century. Thefrontpar”t hes a succoed-over
round vent; the rear pargpet is Sgpped.  The lower windows
on the wes 9de are barred.  Off the rear of the buUding
Isaonegoy brickwing. Over the twof rontentries are
transoms.  Over the center entry isa cad iron dJc heed

with light bulbs a thetipsof its antiers, afase clock

s a 11 oclock, and asgnreading "Moming Star EUC"
Other fetures of the exterior include round and dar-shaped
tie rod exdsand a Coca Cola Sgn panted on the bricks a
the top of the eest devation.

Thelot on which this tobacco factory was buUt in 1880 wes
purchessd by W. P. Thomas and J. C. McAdams in 1879. During
the 1830s the buUding functioned as the Thomas & McAdams
Dry Prizery, an etdbUdmat for the pressng of tobacco.

An office wes located in the southeest comer of the ground

floor. Therear addition was mede baween 1886 and 1890 and
savead for drying tobacco. By 1890 Thomas & McAdams were
meking dgars in the bulding; by 1904 the buUding hed been
converted back into aprizery. By 1910 the firstfl oorof
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the buUding hed bean mede into a grocery, and the sscond
floor was usad as a church (probably for an African-American
congregation). In the mid-twentieth century the building
became home to the Morning Slar Lodge of EUcs a black
lodge. Theiron dk heed over thefrontentry may have
formerly adomed Danville's white Elks Lodge.

8. 310Main St. Kingoff Building. 1892. 108-0111-008. CB.

This threeqtory gretcher-bond brick building hesa

shed roof, a date mansard pargpet with a decoraive presssd
metd arest bearing the words "Kingoff Building,” and a
metd modilUon comice. Thefrontwindow openings incdude
a ssgmantd-heed window under the sgnege arest with an arch
formed by molded bricks, and round-head sscond-gtory
windows. The sregt-levd dopfrontis modem and Sde ad
reer ssgmentd-head openings have bean bricked up.

310 Main Srest features one of the mogt daborate and leest
dtered tum-of-thetwentieth-century commercid facades in
downtown DanviUe. The buUding was consmcted in 1832 by
W. H. Rice for us as his confectionaery and bakery. In 1900
Rice sold the property to E. C. Moorefield, whowith L. D.
Moorefied oparated the buUding as awholesde ad retall
bakery and confectionery. Around 1920 the buUding briefly
housed W. P. Hodnett's dothing dore, and in 1922 it wes
sold to Sol, Benjamin, and Adolph Kingoff, who operated the
Kingoff Brothersjewehy dore. A two-gory bakery building
formerly sood to the rear.

9. 312Main St. J. A.DavisBuUding. 1892. 108-0111-009. NB.

This three-story brick building hes a shed roof, a

shed-roofed one-dory rear wing with ssgmentd-heed windows,
awood gar rising on the rear devation, and a modem

metd facade with a metd avning and digolay windows. The
interior of the third floor retains some integrity, with
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origind four-pand doors, milled door and window trim, and
transoms over doors.

J. A. Davis bulUt this dtered buUding and its undtered

reer wing in 1892. Inits ealy years the buUding houssd

the Virginia Cafe and a clothing gore and, around 1910, one
of Danvillesfirst movie theatars  In 1927 the building

wes known as the A & B dothing gore. Historic photogrgphs
indicate thet the building formerly had a decordive drest
front amilar in desgn, materid use, and degree of
workmanghip to its next door neghbor and contemporary, 310
Main Stredt.

10. 316 Main St. 190519107 108-0111-010. CB.

This two-gtory gretcher-bond brick building hes a front
devation with a metd modiUion comice (formerly with a
metd baudrade), two large second-gory round-head windows
with 11 saeh, facade piers with decorative brickwork, and
modem ground-levd display windows and transom thet are
amilar to the origind in cherecter.

According to Sanbom maps this buUding gopearsto have
bean buUt between 1906 and 1910, or it may be a remodding
of alaeningeenth-century buUding. Origindly the

buUding houssd arestaurant on its ground floor. By 1927
the resaurant hed been replaced by the Fair Clothing

Company clothing Sore.

11. 318 Main St. Diana SopsBuilding. Ca 1950. 108-0111-011. NB.

This one- and two-gory concrete block building hes a

plan brick facade and early duminum display windows and
inst entry.  Theentry is paved with terrazzo pands of
svad colorswith one pand (tearing the logo "Diana."
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This buUding wes probably buUt shortly after World Wer |l
for Diana Shops, awomen's clothing sore.

12. 322-326 Main St. Pace BuUding. 1875. 108-0111-012. NB.

Thisthreegtory brick building hes a modem meta

facade that obsoures modt of an origind cadt iron facade,
modem tUe and duminum digplay windows and inset entries,
and onedary brick and conarete reer wings. An origind
cad-iron dgalJ thet is qiU visble isa combination

fluted square pilaster and samooth round pilaster located
betwean two shop fronts. One of the reer brick wings hes
uarehead 6/6 sssh windowswith barsand an entry vritha
transom and a four-pand door with vertical beeded

tongue-and-groove pands.

This buUding was condmcted in 1875 and was known ather
s the Pace BuUding or the Boswvel Building. At the time
it was built, the buUding was one of the largest commercid
blocksin DawiUe Beforeit was covered by amodem
facade inthe 1970s the building featured an outdanding
late-nineteenth-century  cadt-iron facade with decordive
quoining, window hoods, comices, and a centra arched
ggnage pand above the pargpet that reed "Basvel Building /
Erected 1875." On die 1877 Bears mgp die buUding is
identified as bdongingto C. T. Pace, aDawUle
tobacconid. On the 1886 Sanbom mgp the buUding is
labded "Paces Building” and is shown containing shoe,
fiimiture, grocery, clothing, and miUinay sores The
buUding described in this entry comprises four of the
origind five bays of the buUding; the fifth bay is

destribed in the entry for 332 Main Streat.

13. 332 Main St. Saer's 1875, 108-0111-013. NB.

Thisthreegtory brick buUding hes aca. 1945 Art Deco
conarete facade with glass block windows and scored verticd
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drips, avedige of sylized cadt iron-quoining left over

from the origind facade, a modem display window and insst
entry, and atwo-dory rear devaion with segmentd-heed
door and window openings.

This building represents the wesOTimod bay of the 1875
Pace BuUding (elso known as the Bosvel Building),
destribed more fuly in the entry for 322-326 Main Sirest.
In 1886 this building contained a doegore. In 1913 it
contained the Clarke & Sesgar hardware and sporting goods
dore, a whdedéereta) edabUsmat begun by L. C.
Clarkeindie 1890s By 1927tiiebuUding had become
Saer's Reedy To Wear dothing dore. Sater's replaced the
origind cad iron facade of the buUding with a ampUfied
Art Deco concrete facade probably shortiy after World War
Il.

14. 336 Main St. American Naiiond Bank & Tma Co. Ca. 1934. 108-0111-014. CB.

This two-dory limestone-faced mesonry building is

deelJad in adasscized modem idiom withfl utedcolossal
piersflankingthe man entrance (evocative of columns in
antis), a dentil comice with geometric moldings, scalloped
pargpet trim, an duminum flag gandard with omamenta bese
projectingfromthe pargpet, and a green done bese ad
goandrds betwemn the first- and second-gory windows on the
Main and Market dredt devations.  Extendingfromthe rear
of the buUding is atwo-gory brick addition deting to ca
1937. Thebuilding hes modem tinted glass windowsand a
modem Colonid Revivd lobby.

This bulUding was goparently buUt around 1934 when

the American Nationd Bank & Tms Compeny acquired a
two-gory Neodassca bank buUding on the site. The
company ssas to have damoUdhed the earlier building or
possbly to have incorporated it into the presant buUding.
DanviUe architect J. Bryant Heard was the likely architect
for the presant buUding, which is smUa to his other
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works of the period. Heard a0 desgned the 1937 addition
to the rear of the bank that was buUt by the congmction

firm of K. Anderson. The American Nationa Bank ad
Tmst Company wes edabUdhed in 1909. The building isnow
owned by the Virginia Bank and Tmst Company.

15. 401-407 Main St. Ca 1929, 108-0111-015. CB.

Thistwo-dory dretcher-bond brick buUding hes a

onegoy rear wing, Umedone or cag-gone quoins,

comice, facing, and molded window trim, two duminum shop
fronts (one of which—Allen's Javdes—features

sophigicated ca. 1980 desgn).  The windows have modem
sadh; saverd windows on the Market Street devation have
been bricked up.

This building represants an interesting mix of classical
and modem design.  The gone quoins and molded trim
evoke Neodlasscd styling, wharess the flat pargpet

and greamlining of features ssams more modem in
ingpiration. The bulUding wes goparently designed by
New York architect Alfred F. EvansfortiieW. T. Grant
Co., ad contracted for in 1929.

16. 406 Main St. Bermaen Building. 1944. 108-0111-016. NB.

This two-dory dretcher-bond brick buUding is plainly
ddaJed with a dightiy corbeled comice incorporating a
besketweave band, a shopfrontwith digplay windows and a
recessd entry, glass block windows on both sories of the
dde (Maket Si-ed) devation, and barred 11 sssh windows
on the rear devation.

DanviUe clothier 1ssec Baman buUt this dore buUding in
1944 on the dte of atwo-dory buUding that was last ussd
& acady dore. Prior to 1944, Baman operated out of a
building on the 300 block of Main Strest. The Bermans
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busgness was begun in 1834 by Polish-bom Jecob David
Berman, the grandfather of the present owner. Jay D. Berman.
The buUding replaced by the Berman BuUding was occupied
by the Nicholas & Hesdoerg sdoon and restaurant in the
1880s ad laer by the retaurant of Green & Company.

17. 409 Main St. Broadway Theater. 1920, 108-0111-017. NB.

This two-gtory mesonry (probably brick) building hesa
modem conarete facade above modem duminum digplay
windows.

Condmcted shortiy after the Masonic Temple Fire of January

3, 1920, this buUding served as a "moving picture thegter."

The Southem Amusamantt Co., Inc., meneged it asthe
Broadway Thedter in 1927 (a thegter on the dte prior to

1920 hed the samename). Around 1940 the thester was knovm
asthelLea After World War 11, the buUding was conveated
into red) space. The present facade and shopfrontdae

to the 1950s or 1960s and replace a Succoad or sone-faced
facade that may have been Neodlasscd in inspiration.

18. 410 Main St. 1899-1904? 108-0111-018. NB.

This three-qtory brick buUding hes a modem dretcher-

bond brick facade with bay windows on the sscond Sory

and a hopfrontwith modem digolay windows and mansard-
like metd awning. Theorigind brick facade hed windows
with decoraive (metd?) hoods and a metd comice with
finidsand a cresting.

410 Main Stregt was probably buUt betwean 1899 and 1904,
as indicated by Sanbom magps, dthough it ispossblethe
buUding incorporates a much older damcture.  During the
first two decades of the twentieth century the buUding
housad a drag dore, office oace, and the Jefferson
Clotiiing Store (etebUdhed in 1912). In 1927 it wes
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occupied by the Qualty Bakery and H. M. Lindhord.
The buUding is now usad as offices by the DanwviUe
Tdephone Sarvice, Inc. and wes given its presant
gopearancein 1959.

19. 411 Main St. Efird & Company. 1920. 108-0111-019. NB.

This two-gory mesonry building hes a decordive pressed

metd comicewith brackets, recessad pands bawean the
brackets and an embosssd molding above the brackets. Bdow
the leve of the comice the facade hes been modemized,

with a sheathing of blue and white tUes and modem display
windows and inset entry.

411 Main Stregt was congmcted shortly after the Masonic
Temple Fire of January 3, 1920. The building was desgned
by J. Bryant Heaxd of the DanviUe office of Heard &
Chegaman and was buUt for the Efird & Company departmant
dore

20. 415 Main St. 19207 108-0111-020. NB.

This three-dory bulUding hes a facade compossd of
dtemating bands of Umedtone or cagt gone and
dretcher-bond brickwork intergoersed with meta 2/2 sseh
windows. At drest levd are modeam duminum display
vnndows and an inst entry.

The modem syling of this buUding suggessit was buUt
shortiy after World War 11. It replaces or incorporates the
Z. V. Johnson Depatment Store, buUt in 1920 and desgned
by the firm of Heard & Chestermen.
21. 416-430 Main St. BeUcLegoet BuUding. 1901; 1912; 1920s  108-0111-021. NB.

This buUding is adudJy a compaogte of a leedt three
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Sgparate buUdings or portions of buUdings joined behind a
modem med pand facade and granite-faced modem shap
fronts. Higdoric fabricisonly visible on the eest 9de

ad rear devaions, which festure broad expansss of
dretcher- and sx-course Americantbond brickwork and faded

painted dgnege reeding "Belk Leggett.”

The large building with the blank modem facade known to
DanvUI€es ditizens as BeUc-Legget'sis actudly a

compogte of & leedt three erUe buUdings The earliest

of thexeisthe wetemmod quarter of the presant building,
condmcted in 1901 as the eesternmogt section of the Dudley
BuUding (s= 108-111-23). Thisssction formerly hada
decorative brick and terra cotta Romenesgue Reviva facade
identica in styling to the surviving facade of the

remander of the Dudley BuUding. The next ddest unit is
the Virginia Hardware Company, desgned by DanviUe
achitect Charles Pettit and builtin 1912, Pettit's

buUding originey hed a utiiUtarian brick, sed, and

glass facade that was described 1n 1913 as "miU

congmction . . . practicaly glass fronted." The eegam

haf of the Bak-Leggett budding wes gpparently constmcted
for the departmat doreinthe 1920s possbly after fire
damege of an earUer buUding on the dite.  Its facade featured
vertica ribbonsof brickwork sgparated by banks of windows
and stuccoed goandrds with diamond-shaped acoant blocks

22. 423-427 Main St. MUler BuUding. 1920. 108-0111-022. CB.

This threestory dretcher-bond brick buUding is graced

by adasscd facade with second- and third-gtory brick
piers supporting an entablature-like meta cornice and brick
pargoet. The piers have ample cgps and are ssparaed by
large square- and round-heed windbwswith /1 and 6/6 sseh
and threepanetransoms The cornice hes modiUions and
triglyph-like pands in the frieze, and the pargpet hes

linear duccoad pands At sreet levd are mid-
twentieth-century duminum display windows. On the
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interior are walJ and celling tresiments dating to the
budding's use as a Kresge dgoatmat dore.

423-427 Man Stregt weas buUt shortiy after the Masonic
Temple Fire of January 3, 1920. The buUding was desgned
by J. Bryant Heard of the DarwviUe office of Heard &
Chegerman and was built for E. H. MUler. In 1927 tiie
building contained the 5 «e 10 Cat Store of the S. S Krege
Company chain. The buUding presentiy houses Dollar Generd
Sores

23. 434-442 Main St. Dudey BuUding. 1901. 108-0111-023. CB.

This large threedory  gretcher-bond brick commercid
block retains five of its origind 9x facade sections on

Main Si-ef (the Sxth, 430 Main Stredt, is concedled behind
the huge metd facade of 108-111-21). Initsorigina form,
the building had demeants of the Chatesiesue syle such as
a comer tower with a degp pyramidd roof, chimney-like
dements with geomeric omamantt (derivedf romChateau
CheanboTd), and arched corbeling. At the base of the comer
tower was the heavUy mdlicated arched entry to a bank.

The origind comice extending dong Main Stregt carried on
the decorative matifs of the tower. Although &J these
features have been logt, the buUding retainsrichly molded
tarra-cotta roundds, pands, keysones impost blocks, ad

a date block bearing the inscription "1901," as well as
windows with flat, jack-arched, segmentd, and round heeds
formed of amoath and textured brick. The buUding now hesa
sample corbded pargpet dating to the mid-twentieth century
and modem shopfrontsand shop interiors.

434-442 Man Sti-eet-tiie Dudey Building-was buUt in 1901
a DawUl€s buded intersection, Main and Union. A bark
occupied the comer of the buUding through 1920, and dores
sdling dry goods, boats and dhoes, cigars, and jewdry
occupied the other hopfrontsduring the early years. In
1904 an BUcs lodge occupied the third gory of the buUding;
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in 1915 a commerad school hed taken the Elks' place,
During the mid-twentieth century the buUding gradualy logt
demants of its facade, beginning with the comer tower roof
and arched entry and ending with the arch-corbded comice.
The buUding was desgned by Wingon-Sdem, N.C. architect
Henry J. Blauvdit.

24. 501 Main St. Woolworth's Building. 1937. 108-0111-024. CB.

This two-gory limestone-faced concrete-block building
hes a savere facade with a ssoond gory formed by
dtemating pier-like dements and metd windows and
duminum display windows and inset entries with plain
aurrounds  In the pargpat is omamentation such as fluting
and facgted bosses. At the sscond-dory window-sU level
iIsascdloped band. Therear of the buUding, extending
dong Union Siredt, isone gory in haght and hes aplain
Umedonefacing. The eesem section of the building wes
goparentiy buUt in 1941 as a sgparate edablishment, and
acquired and remodded by Woolworth's in the late 1940s
or ealy 1950s

501 Main Stregt-Woolworth's—was desgned by DarwviUe
achitect J. Bryant Heard in 1937 and buUt by R. E.
Clarson. ThebuUdng is characteridic of Heard's
commerad work of the 1930s, with smplified

Art Deco messng and decorative motifs. Before

the CivU Rights movement, Woolworth's had sgparate lunch
counters for white and black patrons, and the dore was the
e of gt-ins. Woolworth's dosed in 1992 and vacated
the building. The eestem section of the buUding was
goparentiy buUt in 1941 as Diana Shops, awomen's
dothing sore, and was bassd on adesign by the Garric
Congmction Company of Chicago. The section originaly
featured a Succoed facade with an arched pargpat ad
large letters peling "DIANA SHOPS."
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25. 515517 Main St. Hermen Building. 1909-1910.  108-0111-025. CB.

This four-gtory buff-colored brick buUding hes a modem mead
comice with modillions and dentils thet replaces a amilar
origind comice, afrieze of guccoed pands under the
comice, and an uppa-gory facade with three "frames’
contaning banks of windows. Theframeshave projecting
brick borders and atenuated granite keydones  Betwean the
keygones is the inscription "Hemman Building." The sscond-
and third-gory windows are separated by brick spandrds
with projecting pands over the second-dory windows ae
prism glass transoms  The modem dreet-levd ghop front
with inset digplay windows and entries replaces origina
digplay windows and wide prism glass transoms. Extending
from the rear of the buUding is a utiUtarian three-gtory
brick and ged addition medein 1939.

The building interior hes bean dtered condderably over the
years but retains some historic fabric. Judt ingde the
esdfrontentry is a white mable pand with an old
buUding directory panted on it in gilt lettering. At the
rear of the buUding are ca. 1940 devaors with Chaokee
red doors with black sripes

The L. Herman Depatment Store, the origind occupant of the
Herman Building, wes etdbUshed by Louis Herman, who moved
to DawUlefrom Bdtimorein 1886. Louis Herman wes ane of
DanviU€es foreamodt civic leedas the founder and presdent

of the DanviUe Knitting MiUs and chief devedoper of the

Forest HiUs suburb. From 1886 to 1910, the L. Herman Sore
moved from location to location in the downtown before
sttiing on the 500 block of Main Street, which Louis Hermen
felt would eventuel ly become the principa commercid block
in the city. Heaman hired DawviUe architect Charles Pettit

to desgn his new lodgings, ad inthe early 1910s Pettit
occupied an office on the fourthfl oorof the building. In

1939 Hamen chose Martinsville architect J. Coates Carter to
add the rear wing. Miditwentieth-century dterdtions to the



United States Department of the Interior
Nationai Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

N 7 « 25" Downtown Danville Historic District
Section number Page DanviUe, Va.

exterior of the building were corrected during an
ealy-1990s restoration.

26. 519 Main St. 1899-1904. 108-0111-026. NB.

This two-gory brick building hes a meta comice ebove
a modem metd facade and modem display windows and inset
entry.

519 Main Stregt was buUt bawean 1899 and 1904, according
to the Sanbom mgas It may have bean built in conjunction
with 523 Main, abuUding of ImUar form thet shared a
comice with 519 Main. Atfirstthe buUding contained a
walpgper hop. In 1915 a cothing Sore occupied the
building-possbly A. A. Tumer's men's hebadashaery, located
a 519 Main in 1927.

27. 523 Main St. M. Arenon & Sons. 1899-1904.  108-0111-027. NB.

This two-dory brick buUding hes a modem facade with a
conarete pand sscond gory and modem display windows and
an inset entry with abrick surround a dregt level. To

the reer extands aonedary conarete-block addition.

523 Main Siregt wes built between 1890 and 1904, possbly in
conjunction with 519 Main Strest.  In 1904 the buUding
housd atalor dhop; in 1927 this shop wes thet of M.
Arenson & Sons.

28. 525 Main St. 1894-1899. 108-0111-028. CB.

This two-gory gretcher-bond brick building hes a
bracketed metd comice, narrow seconddory 1/1 sseh
windows with jack arches, and a modem shopfrontwith
transoms, digplay windows, ad insst entry thet are Smilar
in charecter to the origina. The building hes 2/2 sseh
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windows on the rear devations of both the two-dory section
ad aonedoy rear wing.

525 Man Srest was goparantly built betwean 184 and 18909,
according to Sanbom magps, dthough the presant building mey
represant an early-twentieth-century  replacement.  In 1898

the marchant talJor hop of D. Jones & Company wes located
a the address and atailor continued a the location into

the 1910s In 1927 the Bohn Millinery Compery occupied the
buUding. A higoric photogrgph dating to the first decede

of the twentieth century shows the buUding with an

omamenta maa comicewith an arched arest thet wes
replaced a an early date by the present comice.

29. 527 Main St. 1894-1898. 108-0111-029. CB.

This two-gory dretcher-bond brick building hes an
intricately corbdled brick comice, facade piers with
recessed drips, ssoond-gory squareheed 11 sssh windows,
and a dopfrontwith an origind ganed glass transom and
inset entry. Therear of the building hes boarded-up
sgmentd-heed windows and a one-dory concrete-block
addition.

527 Main Si-eat wes built bawean 18934 and 1898. From 1898
through 1927 it sarved as an outiet for Singer sawving
machines A higtoric photogrgph from the 1900s dhows the
building with an omamenta metd comice that mud have

been replaced by the presant brick comice & an early date,

and aggn bearing alarge letter "'S" containing the words
"Snger Sewing Machines.”

30. 531 Main St. 1894-1899. 108-0111-030. NB.
This two-gory building hes a mid-twentieth-century

metd facade above a modemidtic glass, duminum, and sone
dopfrontwith digilay casesand an insst entry. Tothe
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rear isaonedary concarete-block addition.

531 Man Strest was but bewean 1894 and 1898 for funerd
director F. W. Townes The Townes Funerd Parlor continues to
opaaein DawUle In 1927 the building contained

Barker's Shoe Sore.

31. 533535 Main St. Ca 1885. 108-0111-031. CB.

This large threedary dretcher-bond brick building hes

an intricate brick comice with corbeling, hound's tooth

coursss, soldier courses, and tumbled brickwork, as well as

soldier-course bdt courses lower down on the facade The
-heed windows on thefront have bean bricked up,

but on the 9de and rear devaions they are less dtered,

and some retain 2/2 sseh and protective bars. Risng from

the dret on the west 9de oftiiebuilding is an exterior

wooden dair with chamfered posts and square-section

baluders thet provides aocess to the upper dories (this

dair formerly provided aocess to the upper gories of the

DawiUe Opera House, now gone). The presat metd dore

fronts and avnings dateto the mid-twentieth century and

replace twentieth-century  architecturd glass fronts. To

the rear extands aonedary brick wing with a

concrete-block besameant. The uppar dories of the buUding

retan early miUed door and window surrounds.

533535 Main Si-et was buUt between 1877 and 1836 by
tobacconig S. H. HoUand.  During its eaxrly years the
building housed many busnesses including a generd
merchandise dore, a med shop, a cabinet shop, abilliard
parlor, acdnema axd a women's clothing sore. The John W.
FerrelU Fumiture Compeany occupied the ground floor for many
years, sling fiimiture, capets, and other househald itams
from its "waerooms' in the building, and aso providing
underteking sarvices. A commeada school operated out of
the upper ories of the building during the first two
decades of the tweantieth century.  The Empire Cafe was
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located in the buUding in the 19205 followed by the Tuxedo
Redaurant inthe 1960s  In the early 1940s former WPA-
atig Carson Davenport mantained a dudio in the building.

32. 539-547 Main St. Danwille Academy of Music. 18386-1890. 108-0111-032. NB.

This one-dary brick building hes a modem metd facede

with glass, duminum, and wood shop fronts. The buUding is
aremnat of alarger three-dory building; original

features quch as decordive cad-iron foundation ventsand
bricked-up ssgmentd-head windows survive on the west 9de
devaion. The Man Sfreat devation presarvesthe spaid
rhythm of the origind dreet-levd facade, with the narrow
dorefrontat 543 Main (now a barber dhop) represanting a
former thester |obby.

539-547 Main Strest is a much-dtered remnant of an
important Danville building, the former Opera House.  Built
betwean 1836 and 1890, the Danville Academy of Music wasa
three-dory building with a comice and arched cresting ad

a grand thedter to the rear withti ersof horseshoeshgped
balconies.  In the 1910s the opara house became the Mgedtic
Theater, upacaded by the Vu-ginia Theater by 1936. From
the beginning the uppear dories of the buUding were rented
out as degping rooms, later these became guest rooms for
the Hotd Normandie, the Colonid Hotedl, and the Virginia
Hotd. The three dore goeoesin the remaining section of

the building have dways contained commercid
etebUdmats The upper dories of the buUding and the
rear theeter section were demadlished inthe 1960s

33. 549 Main St. Soutiiem Amusamat BuUding. 1922, 108-0111-033. CB.

This three-story brick buUding congds of a front

section built in 1922 &s the facade of a theater thet wes

never buUt, and a larger rear section built aoout 1936 a5

saes goece for Sears Roebudck & Company.  Thefront section



United States Department of the interior

National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

7

™ : «
Section number _ J _ Page

bdongs to a group of 1920sterra-cottafaced buildingsin
donvntown DanviUe  Glazed cream-color terra-cotta is usd
to form pUagers capitals, cartouches adentil comice,
andfree-standingums thet rise aove the comice. Cream-
color svegson a purple ground cregte a frieze bdow the
comice, ad the pilager cgpitds incorporae represantations
of lyres. The colosd-order pilagters on thar high
pedestas divide the facade into a center bay and narrower
flanking bays and give the buUding its distinctive
Neoclasscd gopesrance The second dory is provided with
large plate-glass windows, the dreet-level gorefrontsare
modem but recregte the character of the origind. The
UtiUtarian red brick extengon to the rear hes 6/6 sseh
windows and is supported by ged podsand beamson the
interior. The interior of the front section festures a
two-gory Iobby thet hes recentiy been reanodeUed in the
Colonid Revivd syle.

The Southem Amusament Company buUt the front section of
519 Main Sfreet in 1922 and planned to add a2,000-s=t
thester behind it to acoommodate movies, vaudeviUe, ad
Chautauques  Although the thester was never buiilt, the
front section wes put to use as reaJ and office goece In
1936 the buUding was sold to Sears, Rogbuck & Comparny.
Searshired DanwiUe architect J. Bryant Heard to design a
large rear addition that was buUt by the congmction firm

of Erwin & West. Through the years the front devation
was dtered, but it was retumed to its original gopearance
during a 1987 redoration. The building wes desgned by
Claude K. Howel, a Richmond architect who goedaJzad in
thegters

34. 559 Main St. Rippes. 1947. 108-0111-034. NB.

This one-gory masonry buUding hes a decordive brick
and conarete facade over modem digolay windows and insst
entry.

Q. Donmton DanviUe Higoric Digrict
DanviUe, Va.
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559 Main Sfret was buUt in 1947 to house Murray Rippe's
women's daothing dore, abuaness that was etabUshed in
1907. The gore was expanded and remodded in 1967.

35. 560 Main St. BUssHome 1912, 108-0111-035. CB.

This four-gory brick building features an unusud ad

highly decorativefrontfacade. The facade is divided into
vertica sections by Hemigh-bond piers with window and door
openings bawean.  Thefirst gory features two centrd

doors with transomsflankedby French doors. The sscond
dory features French doors with metd raillings forming
fdsebdconies Bewean the doors of the second dory ad
the windows of the third are basketweave brick goandrds and
conaree pands hearing inscriptions derivedf romBucs
mottos. Mounted on llie piers to each 9de of the
inscriptions are conarete clock dids bordered with light
bulbs and with hands st & 11 o'clock, an Elks fradition.
Betwean the third- and fourth-story windows mns a bend of
glazed yeJow and green ceramic tiles st in chevron
pettemns. Abovetiiisband the piers are given amdicated
effect. Infrontof the buUding, shdtered by amodem

metd avning thet replaces an earlier sugpanded awning, is a
porch with brick and conarete tiers decorated with red and
gren tiles. Bewean the porch and Main Sfreet are origind
rased brick planting bedsand a metd datue of an k.

The wes 9de devation facing Floyd Sfreet carries over
some of the decoration of thefront devation, with the
exception of decorative brickwork at the fourth-gory leve
with regularly protmding bricks. The buUding narows to
the reer (forming the gem of the T-shgped buUding
foo™rint) and hes ranks of French doors on both the eest
and wes 9des. To the rear isa smaJ conarete-block
kitchen wing a besamat level. The buUding origindly
featured bollard-like dements that projected above the
pargpet and additiond decoraive tUework aoove

the fourth-gory windows
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Thefrontentries gpen into atwo-gory [obby with a
mezzanine upported by colossal squarepiUars. The |obby
floor is covered in decorative green linoleumtileswith a
linoleum eJc heed dedgn inthe canter. At the et ad

west ends of the lobby are Craftsman-stylefirepl aceswith
heavy wooden mantd shdves and decorative brickwork in the
ovemantds  The piers have decoraive motifs formed of
goldtilesa thar tops and are connected by geomdric
(possbly Wrightian) wood mezzanine baudrades. The
mezzanine hes firgplacesamilar to the oneson the first
floor and an endossd end now ussd for medtings by awomen's
auxiliary.

The cenfrd axis of the buUding leedsfrom the |obby pest a
regidration counter and the principd gair into a

two-gory balroom. Thefoca point of the room isa dage
enframed by a prascenium opening richly omamented with
classcd plager maotifs. Molded plaserwork dso decorates
the ade wdls over ranks of French doors. Other features
of the room incdlude two-pand doors with eared surrounds,
gss light fixturesand early suspended dectric lights, ad
aband gdlery.

The third and fourthfl oorsare largely taken up by
gratments aranged dong radiaing hdlways. The
fourth-floor lodge room hes a cove celling supported by
exposadtimbermembars dained glass windows thet have been
bricked-up on the exterior andfittedwith artificial

lighting, and origina fiunishings mcluding thrones on each

of the four waJsof the room and a blue milk glass Sar of
Fiddity Ught fixture suspendaed over a decorative wood

lectem in the center of the room.  In the besamant of the
building is a modemized restaurant/dub room.

560 Main Sfredt, the Elks Home, is an architecturdly
sophigticated building thet hes played an important role in

the civic higory of downtown Danville. The BUcs Home wes
built in 1912 as alodge and goartment buUding for
DawiUes B.P.O. Elks Lodge No. 227, esabUshed in 1892,

DanviUg Va.
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DawiUe architect CharlesG. Pttit, Jr. desgned the
buUding, adapting the typicadly domedic Craftaman syleto
the neads of a multi-gtory urban buUding. Certain agoedts
of the desgn such as the vaticalty of the facade, the use
of colos pillars in the lobby, and detalls such as the
geometric wood railing of the lobby mezzanine may derive

DanviUe, Va.

from the works of Fauk Lloyd Wright or other early modemids

In confrad, the heavy plaster omamentation and the eared door
surrounds in the balroom are derivedfromclasscd
precedants, and the exposad cedingti mbersand arched

throne backs in the lodge room gopear medievd in inspiration.
English-bom DaviUe contractor Charles Orchard, whose
Soeaidties induded wood, tile, and concrete work, was
involved in the congmction of the building.

An important function of the BUcsHome wasto provide
lodging for membas  Fifteen goatmants in the upper dory
of the building were ussd on short- or longterm beses The
front porch was fiimished with rockers and the lobby hed
Misson-gyle amchairs for the rdaxation of lodgers ad a
retaurant in the besemant (remoddled in 1990) provided
meds. Dances and other recredtions were held inthe
balroom, which is sarved by dumbwatersfrom the besamant
redaurant. Although the last pammanant resdents moved out
of the buUding inthe early 1960s the BUcs Home continues
to provide meding and entertainment  goece for the
organization.

36. 563 Main St. Ca 1950. 108-0111-036. NB.

This onegory masonry buUding hes a limestone front
facade vrith a green done base, plate-glass display windows,
and an inst entry framed by curving glass block walls. The
dde devaion (on Floyd Sfrest) isfaced in dretcher-bond
brick. The buUding may be condmcted of concrete block.

563 Main Sfreat gopearsto have bean condmcted around
1950, besad on the desgn and maerids of its facade;
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however, the facade may have bean added to a 1930s building.
The building is identified as an ABC doreina 1990 city
directory, ad the detalling of the facade istypica of

ABC dores of the period.

37. 600 Main St. Hotd Danville. 1926-1928. 108-0111-074;, 108-27. CB.

This ninedory sed and concrete buUding hes a

V-dhgped plan, a facade with atwo-gory granitic

terra-cotta bese and terra-cotta trimmed brick above Off
the north end of the building extends an dtered Romenesoue
Revivd brick wing dating to ca. 1890 thet is the former
Danville City Market. The buUding features Neoclassicd or
Neo-Adamesgue styling with mstication, quoining,
catouches and pargpet bdudrades andfree-standingums.

The Hotel DanviUe was erected in 1926-1928 as downtown
Danville's premier hotd. The buUding is one of two
highrises built in the downtown during the 1920s (the other
bang the 1922 Masonic BuUding) and as such it playsan
important role in defining the city's skyline. The buUding
was individualy Udad in the Nationd Regider in 1983 a
fuller description of the budding's higory and itshigoric
and architecturd dgnificanceis contained in the
nomination report.

38. 601-623 Main St. Hotd Ledand. 1917-1918. 108-0111-037. CB.

This large four-gory Sretcher-bond brick bulUding hes

a decorative front facade and utiUtarian Sde and reer
devaions. Thefrontis faced in dark brick and is cgoped
by a metd modiUion cornice with a brick pargpet above
The uppe three gories feature Square- and round-heed /1
saeh windows with arange of decoraivefreatmentsin white
concrete such as keygones, impost blocks, and trim blocks.
The third gory a0 features blank conarete pands and
friezes with diamond-dhgped accat blocks. The dregt-leve
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facade conads of seven shop fronts. The westemmod of
these gpansinto the hotel office; next to it is the lobby
entrance, formed by four round fluted Doric pilagers ad
ddtered by amad and gass awvning. The otiier shop
fronts have been modemized to varying degrees, one, Nick &
Nita's Royd Pdms Redaurat (621 Main) hes a pamedone
facade with octagond windows. The eest comer of the
facade hes mdication a dreet level. Theirregular reer
devation feaures lighterfive-courseAmerican-bond
brickwork, decoraive ged fire excgpes squareheed 11
and 6/1 sseh windows, and a polygond wing thet originaly
contained an auditoriumv/theater.  Mogt of the Sreet-leve
interiors have been modemized and the auditorium hes bean
subdivided. 607 Main, which served as a theater |obby,
retans presssd med or plaster waJ omament, apanded
wansoot, marble bassboards, and ati | efl oorwith a Gresk
key border thet provides evidence of a former octagond
ticket booth.

601-623 Man Sfredt, the Hotel Ledand, was built in
19171918 by E. C. ad K. C. Arey. J. Bryant Heard prepared
the plans for the buUding in coUaboration with Danville
achitect Albert G. Pritchett, and H. A . Odome & Compay
savad as the genard contractor.  Originaly, the hotd hed

an auditorium that was oparated by the Southem Amusament
Compay as the Srand Theater.  Later the auditorium wes
converts into a balroom and finaly it was subdivided into

a kitchen and retdJ) goace. The hotd &0 hed a dining

room, a mezzanire leve to the presant lobby, a gas punp out
front, and maples planted dong the Sdewadk. The Ledand
Hotd continues to operate, |etting out rooms on short- ad
long-term bases and it and the Hotel DanviUe aoross the
dret ae the lagt grand hotds in the DanvUIe downtown.

39. 627 Main St. WUson Motor Company. 1925, 108-0111-038. NB.

This two-gory concrete frame buUding hes a
dretcher-bond brick Sfreet facade with decorative
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brickwork and diamond-shgped accent blocks in the pargpet.
Originaly, thefront of the buUding featured an angled

shopf rontthat was recantiy replaced with Colonial Reviva
beeded weetherboard offices and a garage door.  The building's
concretefiramel s expossd on the rear devations with brick
tileandfive-courseAmerican-bond brick endosure and

large metd windows

627 Main Sfrest was built in 1925, according to Sanbom
maps  In 1927 the building contained the Wilson Motor
Company; Frank Poindexter mey have sarved as the deder.
Later the Wyatt Buick dedership occupied the buUding.
Originaly thefront festured an angled digolay window
and a drive-through for automohiles to aocess the garage

in the rear of the buUding.

40. 628 Main St. American Nationd Bank & Tmst Company. 1973, 108-0111-039. NB.

This large two-gory Hemish-bond brick building hesa

date and mad-sheasthed mansard roof with gabled dormers, a
wood cupala, fasechimneys, aMain Sfreet entry witha
Pdladian window ebove an eered entryway, a 9de parking lot
entry with a ssgmenta-pedmented window and balusfrade over
an entrywayflankedbyflutedlonic pUages,

sgmentd-head 6/6 sash windows, and quoining. On the eedt
dde of the buUding is a drivethrough lane with a

hipped-roof brick service booth. On the west sde of the
buUding is a landscaped parking lot endosed by a
Hemish-bond brick wall. At the southwest comer of the
parking lot (the comer of Main and Ridge) isan
ealy-twentieth-cantury  cdlock sugpended from a modem podt.

Main Sfreet, the American Nationd Bank & Tmg Company,
Is a sophidicated example of the Georgian Revivd syle.

The bank was esabUshed in 1900 and formerly occupied a
buUding a 336 Main Sfret (108-111-14). The presant

buUding was completed in 1973.
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41. 631 Man St. T. A. Fox & Company Funerd Parlor. Ca 1925, 108-0111-040. CB.

631 Main Sfreetis atwo-gory masonry buUding with a
duocoed exterior, a gable roof with Spanish tUes and
decoraive belfiy-like dements, a 9de porch supported by
succoad brick arches, an origina onegtory front wing with
gmdl decorative Moorish windows and an entry with a
decordive transom, squarehead 6/6 sssh windows, a
utiUtarian reer wing with a besamat garage (probably
origindly for a hearse), and autiUtarian
micktwentieth-century conarete block two-dory front
addition with med fenesfration. The Sanbom mgps indicate
thet the building is congdmcted of brick, but examination

of the goparentiy origina one-gtory front wing suggests
some conarete block wes a0 used.

Thefirst-floor interior retains origind room layouts but
the finishesare modem. The ssoond floor retains more
origind fabric such as a barrd-vaulted celling and office
doars with textured glass pands.

631 Man Sfreet gopearsto have been buUt in 1925 asa
ftmeral homefor T. A. Fox & Company, undatakers. The
achitett for the buUding wes E. Robat Jamesof DanviUe.
Theorigind onegtary etrance wing formed one Sde of a
ddewdk garden with afountain. ThebuUdingisa
sophidicated and rare example of Misson stylingin
downtown Danville.

42. 635 Main St. F. W. Toamness & Son Funerd Parlor. 1923-1924.  108-0111-041. CB.

This two-gory Sretcher-bond brick-faced brick tile

building hes a poured concrete foundation, a pargpet gable

roof with chimney sadksrisingfromthe pargpets, a wood
modilUon comice, jack-arched 81 sssh windows on the

seoond dory of thefront facade and unusud complex windows
with decoraive concrete lintelson the first gory, a front

entry with an round-arched fanlight shdtered by a Soop
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with abaJed roof supported by dender Doric columns, an
origind utilitarian one-gory rear wing, arear

threegory housing for a Westhrookfrei ghtdevator, and a
1946 utilitarian one-dory rear wing consmcted of concrete
block with a dretcher-bond brick facing and having a
three-bay garage undameath (for parking hearses).

Theinterior is detalled in the Colonid Revivd dyle with
a centa-passege dafr with tumed baugers ad fread
brackets afrontparlor with a Federd-dyle mantd with
anburgsin the frieze, and molded chafr relJsin many
rooms.

635 Main Sfret was built as aftmeralhome in 1923-1924 by

F. W. Tomes & Son. The buUding wes desgned by J. Bryant
Heard of the Danville office of Heard & Chetaman ad it wes
built by tiiefirm of Cavert & Brightwell for $40,000.

Theorigind function of the buUding isreflected inits

domedtic form and styling. A rear addition was medein 1946.

The DarwvUle Area Chamber of Commerce hes occupied the building
ance 19%67.

43. 700 Main St. Danville Pog Office. 1932. 108-0111-042. CB.

This large three-dory Umestone-faced building hes a
amplerectangular form. In the compodtion of its
devaions and the repetition of facade demantsthe
building derivesfrom the classcafraditionof desgn for
large govemmat and inditutiond buildings. At the leve
of individud exterior and interior detalls the building is
Art Decoin styling.

Theflat buUt-up roof is conceded behind a pargpet with a
comice with modiUion-like dements and sculpted animd
heeds The ssoond and thfrd dories of the bulUding are
composad of I atflutedpiers ssparated by metd windows and
bronze spandrds with chevron decoration. At the bese of

the sscond gory above the front entry is the inscription
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"United Sates Pogt Office and Courthouse” The mdticated
ffrst gory hes three centrd entries on thefront (Main
Sfrest) devaion with bronze doors surmounted by transoms
with bronze griUes. Hanking the entries are windows
behind chainrmail-lUce bronze griUeswith carved eegle
meddUons ébove  Infrontof the entries are granite 9gos
flanked byflutedlimestone lamp dandards  The besamant
level isfaced in granite and hes a comearsone inscription

a the southeest comer.  The second and thfrd dories do

not extend fully aorass the rear devation of the buUding
(giving the upper dories a U-dhgped plan); the left-over
goeceis faced in blond Sretcher-bond brick. A long metd
avning is suspanded from the rear first dory to shdter
besament-levd freightdoors. Behind the building isa
rased parking lot with bettered concrele walls.

Thefrontentry leeds through a vedtibule into the lobby, a
rectangular goece occupying the canter of the first sory.

The lobby hes baige marblefl oorsand amoath flat pilagters
with acanthusledt capitds, aplagter caling with acove

and afrieze bearing triglyph-like demeants and paterag, banks
of mad lock boxes bdow bronze griUes, osk door trim, & leest
one early writing table, and a sarvice area patitioned off from
the res of the lobby by aglasswal. The office ad work
goeoes urrounding the lobby have conventiond period post
office finishesand features such as high bevdled
tongue-and-groove wansoots and two-leve vaults with
decorative panting.

700 Main Sfreet, DanwviUes federd pog office ad
courthouse, was buUt in 1932 to replace an antiquated 1832
building on the 500 block of Main Sfreet. The congmction
of the 1932 building was concaved in part as a public works
project intended to provide work for the unemployed. The
acting supervisng architect for the bulding wes Tressury
Depatment officia JamesA. Wetmore The actud work of
design wes carried out by DanviUe architect J. Bryant

Heard. Heard goparently worked dosdy with Treesury
Depatmeant architects (as Uludrated by tile dock desgn of
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secondary  gpeces on the interior of the building), and

decisons quch as the use of "white limestone' as an

exterior facing may have been mede by Washington.  Othawise
the building exhibits the hybrid classica/Art Deco syling

thet characterized most of the commercid buUdings Heard
desgned for DanvUIles downtown inthe 1930s Sinceits
condmction, the DanviUe post office hes played an

important role in the civic life of the city and it hes

dood as one of the downtown's principa architecturd
landmarks

44. 10 N. Market St. 02.1935. 108-0111-043. NB.

This dtered two-gory brick building gopearsto conast

of a one-doryfive-courseAmerican-bond brick origina
sedtion (probably dating to the 19309 with a post-World War
[Ifive-courseAmericantbond brick sscond-dory addition and
a dretcher-bond brick infiU of an origina Sfreet-levd

dhop front.

The origina section of 109 North Market Sfreet gopearsto
have bean buUt shortiy after North Market Sfreet wiss shifted
and widened in 1934. In 1920, the Ste was occupied by an
ice cream factory. This building may represent a Sucoessor
to the factory, or it may have been built as exfrasdes or
dorage goace for BeUcLegodt a 416-430 Main Sfregt
(108-111-21), whichit adjoins.

45. Il N.Market St. Ca 1935. 108-0111-044. CB.

This one-dory brick building hes a plain pargpet with

unusud five-coursemixed garden wall-bond brickwork with dark
heeders a scdloped metd dhop front comice, and ashop

front with digolay windows and an inset entry with origina

or ealy glassdoor. Thefrontis sdtered under a 9ed

metd avning.
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111 North Market Sfreet gopearsto  have bean built shortly
after North Market Sfreet was shifted and widened in 1934,
and probebly functioned as a smdl retall or repafr shop.

It ispresentiy occupied by a shoe shop.

46. 113 N. Market St. Ca 1935. 108-0111-045. CB.

This onedary brick building hes a pargpet with

decorative brickwork including projecting bet courses, a
soldier- and gack-bond frame around the dhopfront,a
cavas avning, and modem duminum digolay windows with

pamedone bases

113 North Market Sfreet gopearsto  have been buUt shortly
after North Market Sfreet was shifted and widened in 1934.
The building probably functioned origindly as a smdl

reid) or sarvice shop. A barber shop presantiy ooccupies
the buUding.

47. 115 N. Market St. Q2. 1935, 108-0111-046. CB.

This onedary dretcher-bond brick building hes

decoraive Sde and end pargpets with blank goeces for
dgnage, dlass doors with transoms, and windows with later
plate glass and louvered panes.

115 North Market Sfreet gopearsto  have bean buUt shortiy
after North Market Sfreet wes shifted and widened in 1934.
The buUding may originally have sarved as a bus gaion.

48. nos. Market St. C. W. & M. Wes Grocary. 1894-1899. 108-0111-047. NB.

This dtered two-gory buUding hes a modam vinyl-sded
facade with fase louvered shutters on the sscond dory and
a bay window on the first dory. Therear devaionis
dhegthed in plywood.
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110 South Market Sfrest may have bean built betwean 184 ad
1899; the 1899 Sanbom mgp dhows a two-gory building
occupying the Site.  In that year a grocery occupied the

first floor and the ssocond floor contained boarding rooms

The grocary wes goparently operaed by C. W.and M. Weg,
who were black. The buUding was occupied by a grocery for
much of the early twentieth century. During the second

querter of the century the building was usad as a Sgn

panting shop.

49. 116120 S. Market St. A.W. Canter & Compary.  1894-1899. 108-0111-048. CB.

This two-dory brick double-gtore building hes a comice with
unusua brickwork thet looks like overlgoping shingles, second-
dory ssgmentd-heed 1/1 sash windows, and a hound's tooth course
running aoove the dtered dhop fronts. Tothe rear isa two-

dory brick wing with bricked-up segmenta-heed windows

116-120 Soutii Market Sfreet wes buUt batwean 1894 and 1899,
acoording to Senbom mgps The bulUding occupies the Ste

of the late-nindeanth-century Market Square, vecaed

around 1890 with the congmction of the new municipd
buUding and market house on Main and Floyd Sreets. The
first floor of the buUding was originaly occupied by a
grocary and the second dory contained desgping rooms. A.

W. Canter & Company weas the principal occupant of the
building in 1898. By 1920 a 9gn painting establishment hed
moved into the buJ(Ung.

50. 122-124 S. Market St.  1894-1899. 108-0111-049. NB.

This two-dory Imck bulUding hes a modem facade with
cormgated meld sheathing over abrick and glass shop front
with acanvas avning.

122-124 Soutii Market Sfreet was built betwean 1894 and 1898.
122 South Market was occupied by a black barber nemed S, R.
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WiUiams in 1898, and 124 was occupied by the C. E. Hughes &
Compay grocery. In 1904 the building contained a fumiture
dore, dextribed as a sscond-hand fumiture shop in 1910,

By 1915 the building hed been converted into awholede

grocery.

51. 126 S. Market St. 02.1950. 108-0111-050. NB.

This threegtory  Sretcher-bond brick building hes

ample modem syling such as /1 saseh drip windows and a
plan pargpet. The modem 2/2 sash windows and entries on
the ffrst dory are sheded by canvas avnings.

126 South Market Sfreet gopearsto have been built shortiy
after World War 11, besed on its modem styling, dthough it
is possble that it rgpresents a complete remoddling of an
earlier buuding. Theinaurance firm of Cox & Goodridge,
Inc., etadbUdhed in 1934, currentiy occupies the building.

52. 402-408 Patton St. 1886. 108-0111-051. CB.

This two-gory Sretcher-bond brick buUding hesa

bracketed wood comice with pierced vents and tumed bosses
betwemn the brackets, boarded- and bricked-up segmentd-heed
seocondkgory windowss, origind shopfrontswith chamfered
wood pods ad large 2/2 sesh windows, metd avnings thet
replaced earlier (canvas?) avnings, and Sgnage assodaed
with the budding's mogt recent use as afish redaurant.
Therear of the building hes segmenta-heed door and window
openings, back-wdlflues(assodated with former
ssoond-gory goatmants), and a one-dory conarete block
kitchen wing. Thefirst-storyinterior hes been dtered.

402-408 was built in 1886 immediatdy adjecant to the city
market, a long shedtUke buUding thetfrontedon Market
Sfreet. Groceries occupied the three dhops on the first
dory of the building with the sscond gory used as
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goatments  Although a grocery wess located in the buUding

&6 late as the 1910s other etablidments dhared the

building from the late 1890s on such as aplumbing $op, a
wholesdle tobacconis, and an office. Tenants in 1898

induded grooars C. L. Martin and J. H. Phdps, and madhant

C. C. Smithson. In 1899 an organization known as the Twin
City Club occupied the sscond sory. Tenants in 1927

included Dodd & Lovell, grocers, the Roya Coffee Company,
and Vfrginia Clark, who ran a boarding house in the ssoond story.

53. 410 Petton St. Ca 1930. 108-0111-052. NB.

This dtered two-gory brick buUding hes a modem
Hemish-bond brickf rontfacade bdow an agphdt-shingle
mansard with gabled dormers. The only reedUy goparant
origina exterior feaure is thefive-courseAmerican-bond
brick eest dlevation.

410 Paton Sfreet gopearsto have bean built around 1930 as
arear addition to the Johnson Department Store a 415 Main
Sfreet. As origindlJy condmcted the building hed a
modonistic succoed facade. The exterior was remodded in
tiie 1970s

54. 418 Patton St. DawviUe Municipa Building. 1926-1927. 108-0111-071; 108-58. CB.

This threegory Umestone-facaed buUding hes a main

section agned with Patton Sfrest and arear wing giving

the buUding an ovardJ T-shgped plan. Thefrontfacede is
formed by arow of amoath round lonic pUagers with window
and door openings in the intercolumniations. Running & the
top of the facade bdow aplain pargoet isa dentU comice
and afrieze bearing the inscription "Municipa Building.”
Betwean the first- and sscond-gory windows are decordive
meta mandrds (most of the building's windows have modem
tinted panes). Thefrontentry hes three bronze doors, the
cenfral door with a ssgmentd pediment and the others with
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peeked pedments. Thef rontfacade wrgps around to the
ddesof the building with amoath flat Doric pUades
taking the place of the lonic pUagtles The rear devaion
and the devations of the rear wing are condmcted of blond
dretcher-bond brick with brick goandrds between the
windows Infrontof the buUding is a broadflightof
depsflankedby plinths with cast-fronlamp posts  Near
the bese of the dgpsis amable datue of Mayor Harry
Wooding. On each dde of the depsae lavns planted with
Lebenon cedars and bordered by gone bdudrades.

The building hes asngleloaded corridor plan. The front
antries open into alobby withfree-standingand engaged
round and square Doric columns: Twoflightsof dairs rise
to the thfrd-story councU chamber, which hes arcaded walJs
Other interior features incdude large skyUghts marble and
dark-gained wood trim, and terrazzo floors.

418 Paton Sfreet, the DanviUe Municipal BuUding, was
bulUt in 1926-1927 to provide a homefor the DawiUecity
officesand courts. The buUding replaced aca. 1890
municipa buUding located on the norttvwest comer of Main
and North Floyd Sfreets and is built on the gte of en 1873
aty couthouse The comadonewas laid on July 7,

1996 and the buUding was occupied on Septamber 21, 1927.
The architect for the buUding wes the firm of Heard &
Chegerman, with J. Bryant Heard of the firm's DanvUle
office probably mod respondble for the desgn. The
Lynchburg-besed Fuqua Congtmction Company bulUt the
buUding. 1n 1975 aCourts and JHJ BuUding was buUt
adjacent to the 1927 buUding. The DawUle Municipa
BuUding plays an important role in the civic lifeof
DaviUe and dandsas one of the city's principa
achitecturd landmarks. The buUding islised asa
contributing building in the DanviUe Tobacco Warehouse
and Reddentid District, which overlgpsthe Downtown
DawviUe Higtoric Digtrict.
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55. 560 Patton St. Chesgpeske & Potomac Tdephone Company. 1917. 108-0111-072. CB.

This two-gory dretcher-t)ond brick building hesa
domedtic form with a pargpeted gable roof with gale-end
chimneys, a machicolated wood comice, a limestone belt
course & the levd of the sscond-dory window sills, 99
sah windowsin jack-arched recesses afrontanttry in a
besket-hande-arched emlorasure with panded lining, ad a
threedory rear extendon of dJghtiy lighter brick dating

to 1947. Theffrst-floor interior has bean modemized.

560 Patton Sfreet waas built in 1917 forti i eChesgpeske &
Patomec Tdephone Company. The rear addition was mede in
1947. Thebuilding is an early examnple of the Colonid or
Georgian Revivd gyle in downtown DanviUe

56. 212-216 N. RidgeSt. Soutiiem Aid BuUding. 1916. 108-0111-073. CB.

This two-gory dretcher-bond brick buUding hes amed

dentil comice with the inscription "Southem Aid Building”

in the frieze, jack-arched-head 1/1 sash windows, pamedone
dhopfrontswith origind transomsand metd shop comices,
the dete "1916" over afront entry, and a cfrcular window on
the north Sde eevation.

214-216 North Ridge Sfreet was congmcted in 1916 for the
Southemn Aid Sodety of Virginia, Inc. The sodety wasan
Insurance company owned by and operated for
African-Americans, with heedguartersin Richmond. The
Sodety begen operaions inthe DawiUe areain 1904 with
the god of "fogering saf-hep and thrift among itspolicy
holders [in order to prevent] disfress even inthe humblest
home during periods of disshiUty and death.”

57. 532 Spring St. Conrad & Covington Tobacco Factory. 1834.  108-0111-053. CB.

This large four-gtoryfive-courseAmerican-bond brick
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building is charatterized by a danding-seam med-dhesthed
gable roof, a decorative brick comice, rows of

sgmentd-heed 6/6 sssh windows, and atwo-dory wing. The
cornice features corbding, comer flues, and a gable on the
south 9de with a cfrcular vent and a recess for Sgnege.

The andler wing is goparatiy an early (1884-1836)

addition. Painted sgnege for Goodman's Fumiture Compery
and the Old Dutch Super Market gopear on the south and wet
walJs which are d<0 painted white up to the SUs of the
seocondkgary windows. The building hes severd freight
doors, ane with an early beededtongue-and-groovedoor, ad
there are numarous eght-pointed Sar-shgped frontierod

ends

The interior of the buUding retains many early historic
features Thefourfloorsof the main section are upported
by sout wooden pods and beams, some with chamfering.
Alternating pods on the sscond floor have been taken down
in order to adgat the goace for dances. At the eet ed of
the buUding are an earlyfreightdevaior and an endosd
dafr with plain hand ras At the eest ed of the first
floor are remnants of an origina office with a beeded
vertica board wainscot, miUed door surrounds, and evidence
of aformerfireplace.On the sscond floor is aback door
vrith a panded embraaure and a sx-pand (three-and-threg)
door. Inthe onedory wing are counters that ware usd in
the midtwentieth century for a concesson gand but which
saved ancther purpose in the late ningteanth century.

552 Soring Sfret isthe largest industrid buUding inthe
Downtown DawUle Higtoric District, and its historic

fimction and connections with mgor tobacco manufacturing

firms mekes it one of the mog Sgnificant buUdings

asndaed with DanviUes tobacoo trade. The buUding wes
condmcted in 1834 as thetobaccofactory of Charles H.

Conrad & Company. In 1881 Conrad wes manufacturing smoking
tobacco on Soring Sfreet; in 1886 Conrad & Covington

opaaed adry prizery & 552 Spring. By 1890ti i e$8,000

factory hed bean tranderred to Dibrell Brothers which
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continued to use it as adry prizery. Dibrel Brothersweas
one of Danvill€es larger tobacco concems during the period,
and the company mede 552 Soring "BuUding No. 1" of a
complex that induded atwo-gory dry dem factory on the
lot adjoining 552 Soring to the eadt (9nce damoUshed). By
the midktwentieth century, DibreU Brothers hed become "one
of the nation's mgor tobacco deders and exporters” In

the early twentieth century the factory passad from DibreU
Brothersto a number of other firms, all of which usd it

for prizing and gtoring tobacco.  Some firms used evary
floor for prizing, others used only the besement. Around
1930 the building was converted to automobile repafr and
refinishing. In the midiwentieth century the buUding was
occupied by a fumiture dore and a grocery. During this
period the ssoond floor wes used for Moose Lodge dancesand the
uppafloorsweae usd as dorage Old counters inthe
one-dory wing were ussd as part of a concesson dand thet
caered to the dances

58. 600 Block Spring St. Danville City Market. Mid-1930s. 108-0111-04. CB.

This two-dory buUding hes a gabled center section with
dde heds cormgated med Sding and roofing, multi-pane
metd industrid windows on the Sdes and clerestory,
freight doors, and a concrete foundation. On the interior
the buUding hes exposed ged pogtls and roof tmsses, a
conarete floor, concrete-block resfrooms, gorage rooms, an
office, wood-burning soves with concrete-blockflues,ad
woaoden produce bins.

DawiUe hes hed a pubUc market inits downtown snce the
ealy nindeath century. In the 1820s the market was

located near the intersection of Main and Craghead dredls
After the CivU War a Market Square was developed-what is
now South Market Sfreet. When anew municipa buUding wes
condmcted a the comer of Main and North Floyd Sfregts
aound 1890, the market moved to the ground floor of the
budding's reer wing. Ancther market dmcture was provided
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on the southwest comer of North Floyd and Soring Sreets a
about the sametime,and cattie panswere buUt on the
northwest comer of the intersection. With the converson

of the 1890 market buUding to private commerdd use inthe
1920s, and the congmction of the city auditoriumin 1932

a the southwes comer of North Floyd and Spring, the
maket moved to teamporary lodgingsin severd dowrntown
tobacoo warehouses The present market buUding was
condmcted on the gte of the cattie pasin 1935 or

dhortiy after. Saturday isthe traditiond market day

a the market.

59. 108-110N. Union St. Ca 1885. 108-0111-055. CB.

This two-gtory brick buUding hes a Sretcher-bond front
facade five-courseAmerican-bond 9de devaions, ametd
comice above corbeed brickwork, segmentd-heed sscond-dory
2/2 sseh windows with soroUed omamat inthe arches, two
modem shopf ronts(one with a mid-twentieth-century cream,
green, and red terrazzo entry floor), and adecordive

cdotex ceiling inoneint™or.

108-110 North Union Sfreet was goparantiy buUt before 1886,
probably during the early 1880s In 1836, 108 contained a
sdoon and 110 abiUiard parlor, functions that probably
reflect the budding's location acrassfrom DanvUles
foremogt hote of the period (the Arlington Hotel) on North
Union Sfreet, a dreet lined with tobaoco warehouses and
factories and thronged with workersand farmers. A sdloon
operaed in the buUding until after 1900; in 1898 John L.
Cmse was proprietor of asdoon located in 108. Other
busness=s housd in the buUding through the early
twentieth century include an upholdery and cabinet shop, a
plumber, a dothes and does sore, groceries, abowling
dJey, admgdore, and a hardware and tin shop.



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

_ N 7 « AO Doantomn DanvUIe Hidoric Didrict
Section number—Z_ Page DanviUe, Va.

60. 114 N. Union St. Bootii Brotiiers Generd Store. 1894-1899.  108-0111-076. NB.

This two-gtory brick building hes a modem metd facede
with eaUer (but not original) digolay windows and an inset
entry with glass doors and transom.

114 Nortii Union Sfreet was buUt betwean 1834 and 1899,
according to Senbom mgps. In 1898 it wes occupied by Booth
Brothers gengrd sore. By 1904 a hardware dore hed taken
up quartersin the buUdmg. Inthe 1910sad 1920s die
DawiUe Hardware Company occupied the building and the
uppe pat of an adjoining building. The company sold
agricultura implements and doves as well as other sock.

Next to 114 North Union Sfreet on its north 9de isa modem
parking lot thet replaces the Centrd Warehouse, atobecco
waehouse that hed retail oece a dreet levd.

Later the wareéhouse was used as a parking garage by the

nearby Belc-Leggett's Depatmeant Store.

61. 200-208 N. Union St. FuUe Hardware Building. 1903. 108-0111-056. CB.

Thistwo-dory brick buUding festures a complex curved
dreet facade enUvened by decorative fenedration ad
brickwork and a pargpet bristling with gables, piers, axd
other projections. The building s down North Floyd
Sfret, foUowing the naturd dope of the Ste. At the

highest point, the comer of Floyd and Saring dredts, is a
turret-like dement above an insat comer entry to 200. The
turret and other facade dements combine different forms of
corbeling with projecting bet courses and recesssd 9gnege
pands The second-gory windows are modily round-arched
1A seeh of varying widths and haghts, with severd
uare-head and segmentd-heaed windows dso. The building
hes severd early dhopfrontssuch as 206, which hes curved
display windows with copper sanchions, and 208, which hesa
diminutive insst cormgated metd lining. Therear

devaion is more utiUtarian, with barred and bricked-up
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window gpenings and onegory wings. Along the bese of the
outh devation are decorative fron foundation vents

The budding's interior goecesvary in refinement according
to the higtoric usss of the gtore paces. 200 and 202,
which were originaly a grocery and a hardware gore
respectively, have conventiond beeded tongue-and-groove
calings. 204 origindly contained a clothing sore, and

its calling is shedthed in decorative pressed metd with
ormnate bossss for sugpanded Ught fixtures. 204 dso hesa
mezzanine accessd by a stafr with tumed baugers ad
decoraive newd pods 206 features a hand-opaaed
hoig thet usesa sydam of puUeys, shefts, and gears to
lift freight. The sscond story of 208 (a large wedge-shgped
early addition to the buUding) is supported by round log
pods

The commerdd block a 200-208 North Union Sfreet was
largdy condmcted in 1903. The buUding occupies the dte

of J. W. & C. G. HoUand's atdoa Jum tobecoo factory, which
saved as aprison for Federd officers during the CivU

War. The budding's earlies occupants were a grocery, a
clothing sore, and two hardware 40Tes An early and
long-term ooccupant wiss the hardware gore of Archer ad
Oscar Fuller, located & 202 and continued by the famUy

utU 1973, In addition to the FuUers, oocupants of the
buUding in 1927 induded the Booth Brothers grocary (200),
The Globe dothing dore (204), andtile New Y ork BUUad
Parlor (206). 208 was buUt shortly aftertiieres of tiie
buUding usang the same styling and materids. In 1915 the
Auto Tfre Repafr Company was located on the groundfl oorof
208; later the unit wes used as a hardware warehouse

2(X)-208 North Union Sfreet remains to thisday a

littie-dtered architecturd landmark in DanviU€és

downtown.
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62. 201 N.Union St. First SaeBank. 1915-1920. 108-0111-057. NB.

Thistwo-gory brick, conarete, and sed buUding hes a
peble-dash exterior with meid and glass pands, ad
verticd med sding and a drive-through canopy on the
north devation. On the north gde of the building is

apakinglot.

First State Bank originatedfromthe Savings Bank of

DawiUg, etabUded in 1919 to sarve DanviU€es
African-American community. In 1924 the bank purchesed
201-203 North Union, atwo-gtory brick buUding thet

was probably buUt bewean 1915 and 1920. Renamed the
DawiUe Svings Bank & Tmgt Company in 1925, the bank wes
one of only three black-owned barks in Vfrginia to weather

the Depresson.  The bank building weas given its present
modem gopearance in the 1960s according to a design by
MartinsviUe architect JanesR. Eggleston. First Siate Bank
continues inits role as the principa financia inditution
sarving DanvUIes African-American community, and as one of
the Commonwedth's mog historic black-owned banks

63. 210N. Union St. Krogers. Ca 1930. 108-0111-058. CB.

This two-gory dretcher-bond brick buUdmg hes a plain
facade with a recesssd 9gnege pand in the pargpd,
ssoond-gory squareheed 11 sash windowss, origind wood and
glass display windows and insst entry, and a ground floor
interior with apressed med ceding and wood shdving ad
counters from a former grocary sore.

210 North Union Sfreet was probably buUt around 1930. The
origina occupant of the building may have ben a Krogers
grocery dore. The buUding mey dso have contained a
fiimiture dore. Since 1952 Beanies Army and Navy Store
hes occupied the buUding.



United States Department of the Interior
Nationai Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section numbe Page 2R Downtoan DanvUIe His®mc Djdrict

64. 212 N. Union St. 1920-1927. 108-0111-059. CB.

This two-dory dretcher-bond brick building hes a plain
facade with a agnage pand in the pargpet, second-dory
uareheed 11 sssh windows and a hopfrontwith a
transom, decordive digplay windows with a degp inset entry,
ad an Art Deco "S' decd inone window. Theinterior hesa
pressed metd celling. Infront of the building isa
decordive cad-fron sgn pogt with a 9gn reeding "North
Union Place Parking." The 9gn points to a drive-through
leading to a parking lot behind the buUding. Hiis drive-
through formerly served as the entrance to the Exchange
Warehouse, atobaoco warehouse that occupied the parking
lots behind. Over the drive-through isaroom thet is

linked (oetialy and architecturalJy) to the ssocond

dory of 212.

212 North Union Sfreet was buUt baween 1920 and 1927. In
1927 the buUding was occupied by the fumiture dore of

John W. Graves. Laer it was probably occupied by the
Sutherlin fiimiture dore (hencethe "'S' decd in the front
digplay window). 210 North Union, whichis smilar
achitecturaly to 212, may be an original part of 212, or

it may be an early addition.

65. 214-222 N. Union St. Koplen's. 191519207 108-0111-060. CB.

This three-story Sretcher-bond brick buUding hes a

man block witii an early addition on the north sde. Both
sedtions have corbded comices, square-head windows with
fdse louvered wood shutters, and dtered shop fronts. The
dhopfrontfor 222 hes replica late-ningteanth-century
digplay windows, chamfered posts, and a dained glass door
with a ganed glass transom overheed reading "Abe Koplen
Clothing Cfrca 18385." To the rear is a onegory brick
wing. The ground-leve interior has been modemized, the
seoond dory was never finished.
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214-222 North Union Sfreet gopearsto daeto the late
1910s or the building regpresents a subdantid remodeling
of apre-1886 buUding located on the same Ste. The 1886
Sanbom mgp shows athreestory buUding on the Ste that
historic photogrgphs dhow to have been smUar, but not
identical to the presat building. In 1886 asdoon, a

cigar or dgarette wholesder, and afertilizer outiet were
located & the address.  In 1898 sHoons run by Charles D.
Cox and James M. EUe were located a the address, aswes
the Samuds & Abbott ten-pin dley. Other busnessss of the
late ningeenth and early twentieth centuries indluded a
grocary, aredaurant, apool halJ, and a fumiture sore,
From 1886 until the early twentieth century, the upper
floors were used as lodge hdls, initialy by the Odd
Fellows (possbly the Lebanon Encampmant No. 21). (The fact
thet the upper gories of the presant buUding were never
finished suggeds thet they were not ussd as medting rooms,
and therefore the present buUding antedatesthe ffrst

decade of the twentieth century.) In 1930 dothier Abe
Koplen acqufred part of the buUding, and over the years the
Koplen gore expanded into the rest of the building. The
Koplen busgness was begun in 1884 by Russan-bom Max
Koplen. The Koplens remodded the shopfrontof 222 North
Union in 1986.

66. 215N. Union St. Hippodrome Theefre. 1915-1920. 108-0111-061. CB.

This one-gory brick building hes bean dtered fromiits

origind two-gory heght. ThebuUding hesa

dretcher-bondf rontfticadewith modem display windows and
mansard,five-courseAmerican-bond brick sdedevations

with bricked-up ssgmenta-heed window and door openings, and
area brick addition.

215 North Union Sfreet wias buUt betwean 1915 and 1920. In
1920 its two occupants were the Hippodrome Theefre and the
Hippodrome Barber Shop, both black-operated busnesses By
the 1930s the buUding hed bean mede into afimiiture Sore,
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67. 217 N. Union . 19151920 1080111-02 CB.

Thisaneday dredhe-band bridk buUding hes a

pargoaed gale roof. Thefrontpargoda hes a deoraive
pesked prdfile sddier-aourse bands and a sghage pand
flanked by draular recesses Therexr pargod is deoped.
Othe festures of the building indude a dauble sxp front
with eerly waod danchionsfransoms,ad insgt entries and
sgmatd-heed door and window goenings an the Sdes ad
resr.

217 Nath Union Sregt wes bult betwean 1915 ad 1920, In
190 the building contained a garage with a cgpaaty of
waty cas In 197 thisgarage wes knowmn asthe Tmdk &
Tfre Campay, Inc. By the 1930s the building hed bamn
anvatead to rdal use

68. 24226 N. Union &. Maritt BuUding 02.1880. 1080111-063 CB.

Thisthreedary bridk building hes a guctoad uppe

facade with ssgmanta-heed 2/2 and 66 sesh windoas bardered
with pamagane two gar-dhgpadti erad ends ad ldta's
FodUing " Marritt BuUding® At dred levd ae madam

dass ad pamagae dxpfrontswith insd entries Mare
arignd fabric aurvivesn the rear devation, whidh hes
sgmattd-heed doars and 66 sesh windows ad an exxly
aneday brick wing (@ baler room?) with a deoraive
beedad tongueand-g-covefr eightdoar.

224-226 Narth Union Sfredt wes pradoably built bevwean 1875
and 1835, dthoudh it is possble that it is dghtiy

exrUa. In 1835 the buUding aoatained the Lipsoomb &

Brodk Dry Prizary. By 1830 the buUding hed bean converted
into a fumiture dare idantified as the Union Furniture
Campay in 1828 The buUding remained a fumiture dare
for many years but by 1927 itsgroundfloor wes cooupied by
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a pool room and cafe ad its upperfl oorswere ussd es
meding rooms by a black Masonic lodge.

69. 230-234 N. Union St. 1930s 108-0111-075. CB.

230-234 North Union gopears to have bean buUt around 1930
or during the 1930s as acommercid building. Either the
present building or an earlier one-gory building on the

same gte contained in 1927 Gregory's Cut Rate Grocery ad
two black-operated busnesses the Progressve Shoe Repafr
Shop ad the restaurant of B. W. Mason.  The rear wing mey
be adightiy earher building (late 19109 thet functioned

as a blackamith dhop in 1920 and as a battie Sorege

buUding later.

70. 231-233N. Union St. O2. 1885. 108-0111-064. CB.

This threedary dretcher-bond brick buUding hesa

facade with two comer piers and two dosesst middle piers.
Betwean the two middle piers in the pargpet is arounc-heed
recess  The uppa-dory front windows are souareheed 1/1
and are groupad in banks of three. The ssgmantd-heed 3de
and reer door and window openings have bean bricked or
boarded up. The dhopfrontsare modem. Behind the
budding is a succoed two-gory brick wing thet was
originalJy three dories in haeght.

231-233 North Union Sfreet was probably built betwean 1875
and 1886, probably nearer to the laiter date. In 1836 the
building contained a grocery and a fumiture and glassvare
dore on the first gory and a sdloon in the reer wing.

Other egdbUdmats in the buUding during the late

ningteenth and early twentieth centuries induded a bakery,

an undertaker, admgdore, apool hal, and acommerad
laundry. In 1927 the Union Drag Company, a black-operated
busness and Duke's Market were located in the buUding.

DanviUe, Va.
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This conaorele and ged hightrise bulUding hes two

tengtory blocks linked together in a U-shaped plan and faced
in glazed white architecturd terra-cotta The two-dtory
bese of the building hes Tudor-arched bays containing shop
fronts, windows, and metd goandrds featuring tracary-Uke
omamat. A med awvnings with Gothic omamat shdtersthe
the principa entry; modem metd avnings shdter the hap
fronts. Theprincipa entry on South Union, located

a the bese of the tendary sheft a the cater of

the "U," hes an enriched Tudor-arched screen

surmounted by a large sread eegle and the inscription
"Masonic Tempe—aJ formedfromwhite terra-cotta
Stories three through eight are utiUtarian in styling, with
uare-heed 3/3 sash windows st into shedow vertical
recesses. Thetwo dories a thetop of the buUding are

taJer then the other dories and are sgparatedf romthem by

a double cove comice. The ninth sory hes tdJ sguareheed
6/6 sssh windows. The tenth gory has Tudor-arched windows
betwean richly omamented capitdls. The pargpet is composed
of saverd cornices. Therear (eest) devation isfaced in
dretcher-bond brick painted abuff color.

The principal goaoeson the budding's interior are s

richly and imaginaivdy omamented as the exterior. The
South Union entry opensinto a lobby with waldsand floors
of white marble and a friezeformed by cad rosettes. Shop
windows and digplay cassslinethe two Sdes of the [obby;
a the rear ae two devators  On the tathfl oorare the
Masonic meding rooms.  In the south arm of the "U" isthe
bafroom, lined with pUagters supporting guded capitas

and provided with aband balcony. At the north end of the
floor is the lodge room itsalf, which features Egyptian
decoration. Rowsof seatson arampedfl oorface a dage
thet isflankedby sguet round piUars with lotus capitals,
brightiy painted plagter sphinxes and pyramids. Over the
degeisagold aun disk with vulture wingsand agos The
lotus capitds are repeated on the pUadass that line the

Doanntoan Danville Higoric Digrict
PanviUe, Va.
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room and support adegaly coffered celling.

DanviUes Roman Eagle Lodge No. 122 of Masonsweas
etabUded in 1820. The lodgefi rstoccupied the southeest
comer of Main and South Union dredts in the early 1850s
when it buUt an imposng brick temple and commercia
building. The antebdlum bulUding was replaced in 1901 by a
sophidicated Chateauesque buUding thet bumed inthe
destmctive Masonic Temple Fre of January 3, 1920. On
Decamber 10, 1921, the comeardone wes laid for the
Masons thfrd temple on the dte, atengory ffre-proof
building thet was DanviUesfirst skyscrgper. The building
wes desgned by West Vfrginiaarchitect Fred F. Farris ad
cogt $550,000 to build.

In addition to proclaiming the wedth and influence of the
Romen Eagle Lodge, the Masonic BuUding was intended to
releve a shortage of modem office goece in the downtown.
Attorneys, insurance agents, utility officers, and a hogt of
other professonds rented goece inthe buUding, and in
1928 a numbe of city employess including Mayor Harry
Wooding hed thefr offices there. The Masonic Building
remans the downtown's principa office buUding, and itis
one of only two skyscrgpers (the other being the nine-dory
1927 Hotd DawiUe). The edectic styling, gUsening
tara-cotta facades, and imaginaive interiors contribute to
the building's 9atus as an architecturd landmark.

72. 115117 S. Union St. Regiger and BeeBuUding. 1899-1904. 108-0111-066. NB.

Thistwo-dory brick buUding is actudly two buUdings
joined under a angle conarele facade. The facade hes
vertical and horizonta scorings and squareheed metd
windows and probably datesto the period just after World
War 11. Origind dretcher-bond brickwork and
sgmentd-heed door and window openings (modt bricked up)
ae goparat on the north 9de devation. Other features of
the buUding indude an angled comer etry to 115, modem
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brick and glass shopfrontsunder a wood-shingled mansard,
ad alaer rear addition.

115117 South Union Sfreet incorporates two dtered
buildings of goproximatdy the sameage. 115 South Union
was built beween 1899 and 1904 for the Regiser Publishing
Company and was known as the Regiger and Bee BuUding.
DawiUes principd higoric (and presat) newgogoer weas
published in the building. The press was located in the
besamertt, offices occupied the ground floor, and the sscond
dory was ussd for composng. Damege sudaned from the
Masonic Temple Ffre of January 3, 1920 combined with a
desfre for more sumptuous quarters prompted a move dovra the
dregt to the Rorer A. James Memorid BuUding (108-111-70).
The Regiger and Bee Building formerly hed aNeodassca
facede with a pargpat baudrade and comice, round- and
jack-arched-head windows on the front, and a pedimented
aurtound for the angled comer entry.

Boatwright Brothers Company was the early and probable
origind occupant of 117 South Union.  The building wes
built batween 1899 and 1904, possbly after 115 South Union.
Boawright was a printing and dationery plant. In 1910

the building was occupied by abookstore. Later a
fumiture gore was located in the budding, and in 1920 an
automohbile showrocom occupied the address

73. 118 S. Union St.  1904-1910. 108-0111-067. CB.

This narrow two-gory bulUding hes a facade with presssd
dretcher-bond brickwork. The pesked pargpet hes corbding,
and asngle large sscond-dory window is contained under a
round arch bordered by projecting brick. The window hes
three 11 sseh windows underfransomswith Roman-ingpfred
reticulaled muntins. Thefirst gory of the facade hes a

meta shop front comice and a modem dhop front.

118 Soutii Union Sfreet was built bawean 1904 and 1910. The
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buUding is ImUar in syling to its neighbor and neer
contemporary, 120-126 South Union, dthough it hes ared
brick facade wheress 120-126 uses buff brick. 118 South
Union housed atailor shop in 1910.

74. 119121 S. Union St. Pytiiian Building. 1877-1885. 108-0111-068. CB.

This four-gtory brick buUding hes five-course
American-bond brickwork & the top of the Sde devaions, a
danding-seam med-sheathed gable roof with a front
overhang supported by decorative wood brackets, atextura
Succoedf rontfacede with soldier bt courses running &
the bese of the fourth-story windows and forming a
pedmat-lUce matif in the gable, mid-twentieth-century
meta windows (amdler on the fourth gory then the sscond
and thfrd), a brick-lined cfrcular recess containing the
letters "KP" inthe gabdle, afrontfireexcgpe, and modam
metd and white brick shop fronts.

The core of 119-121 South Union Sfreet, dso known as the
Pythian BuUding, was gpparently buUt betiween 1877 and 1885
as acariage dorefor the firm of New & MiUer. A

depiction of the buUding in Edward PoUock's "lUudrated
Sketch Book of Danville, Virginia' dows a threedory
gdmcture with a decoraive brick pargpet, arow of Sx
sgmentd-heed windows across the front upper ories, ad
condderable panted 9gnege including apossble 1885 dae

in the pargpet. New & MiUe advatisd itsdf asa
wholedler and redJe in carriages, wagons, and harnesses
one of two inthe city in 1885. In 1836 the hamesses ware
sold out of the 119 hdf of the buUding, a "carriege
repogtory” was located in 121, and a dable occupied the
besament. By 1890 a bridge hed been condmcated betwean the
thfrd gory of the budding and the carriage factory of W.

P. Homer & Company, located to the rear on Paton Sfreet.
The buUding wes usd to sell carriages into the first
decade of the twentieth century. By 1899 the Knights of
Pythias Phoenix Lodge No. 62 hed moved into the thfrd sory
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of the buUding. EngUsh+bom contractor Charles Orchard
moved into 121 by 1913, and procesded to s/J mantds tiles,
grates ad interior marble work for commercia and
resdentid buildings. In 1913 Orchard employed thirty to
gaxty tradesmen in plagering, marble, and concrete work.
Shortiy after Orchard moved into 119-121 South Union, the
buUding was raised to four dories and the present succoed
facade wes cregted. It seamslikey that this work was done
by Orchard.

75. 120-126 S. Union St. 1904-1910. 108-0111-069. CB.

Thistwo-gory buff Sretcher-bond brick buUding hesfour
discrete facades facing South Union with imaginative
pargoets. 120 hes a Barogue pedimented pargpet with a
round-heed recess 126 hes around-arched pargpet aret
with a keysonelike motif formed out of bricks. The other
pargoasfeature avariety of corbeling, recesses, and
projecting piers. The sscond-dory facades have round-
heed windows linked by projecting bdt coursestheat are
interrupted by vertical piers. The Sde devation on
Patton Sfreet features round- and segmoitd-head 11 and
2/2 sash windows and a large segmenta-heed entry that
formerly provided ingress to a Uvay dable Mogt
dreet-level Shopfrontshave bean dtered, dthough

two retain early meid comices. Therear devation is
congmated of five-courseAmerican-bond red brick and
hes square-heed 6/6 sash windows.

120-126 South Union Sfreet was budt as a multi-tenant
commerdd block bewean 1904 and 1910. The buUding may be
the ssmeas the C. C. BEHdaBlock. A large portion of

the building wes originaJy occupied by the J. A. Lawvson &
Company livery dable, established in 1889. Other early
tenantsincluded atalJor, atin shop, afiimiture dore, a
redaurant, and a printing esablishment. A plague in the
parking lot behind tiie buUding commemoraes tiie Tme

Friends of Charity, an African-American organization thet
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mantaned a medting hall on Patton Sfreet during the late
ningteenth century.

76. 125 S. Union St. JamesA. Rorer Memorid Building. 1922, 108-0111-0/0. CB.

This two-gory concrete-frame building hes an exterior

facing of mette grayish granitic taracotta "blocks.” The
taracotta isform” into a numba of sophidticated

features such as a cornice with dentils, moldings, and
fleurs-de-lis and lion heed omameat; aplain pargoet bearing
the inscription "Rorer A. James' on thefront (South Union
Stredt) facade and "The Regise/Assodaed Press PgpadThe
Bed' on the south (Paton Sfreet) devation; a frieze with
catouches and arabesques, af rontfacade with fluted
columns in antis and an entry surround with thefigure of a
newsoy in place of akeysone a south devation with
anoath flat pUades (both the columnsin antis and the
pilagters have ImUar capitds); front and Sde windows

with enriched surrounds with molded keystones and peterae
between the first- and sscond-gory windows, and an enriched
waatdble course. Thefrontfacade dso hes polychrome
terrarcotta usad to form the portico ceding and two

display cas=swith soUed phliments.  Extending to the

rear isaonegory 1940s addition with a besamant that hes

a granitic terra-cotta facing Smilar to thet of the

origind bulUding and garage doors,

The interior was gredtiy dtered inthe ealy 1940s and
agan inthe early 1960s The lobby hes remnents of
palychrome plagter omamat above adrop celling. Other
features indlude a gafr with metd rails and bauges,
floors formed of concrete poured onto a mcture of
cormgated metd pipe haves, a wood-panded editor's
office, and masdve concrete foundations in the besamat of
the 1940s addition thet formerly supported the presses. Due
to afaulty roof, the interior of the buUding isin a
sioudy deteriorated date, dthough the bulUding exterior
Isin mint condition.
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125 South Union Sfreet, known as the Rorer A. JamesMemorid
BuUding, weas buUt in 1921 for the DaviUe Register

and Bee nevgogper.  Prior to the congmction of the

buUdng the newsogper maintained offices in the Register

and BeeBuilding (108-111-66) nearby a 115-117 Soutii Union.
The building was dmctured 0 thet it could support an
devendory highrise to complenat the tendory Masonic
Budding on the comer of Main and South Union. The

interior of the building was remodded in the early 1940s

ad agan inthe early 1960s, and the soedtacular
Neo-Adamesgue lobby was concedled beneath drop cellings.
The styling of the building suggestsit may have bean

desgned by the Raeigh, N. C. architecturd firmof H. A.
Underwood & Company, architect of the 1927 Hotel DanviUe,
another Neoclasscal buUding thet uses granitic

taracotta 125 South Union Sfreet is the principd

historic buUding assoaated with DanvUIes premier

nevgogpe and is an important architecturd landmark in the
city's downtown.
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NARRATIVE STATEMENT OF S GNIFICANCE

SImmary

The Downtown DaviUe Higtoric Didtrict is located & the historic canter of DanviUe, a tobacco
and textile manufacturing city of the southem VfrginiaFiedmont. The didtrict hes sarved as the
civic and commerdd heat of the city from the 1790sto the present. DanviU€s principa
higoric retall establishments, banks hotds, theaters, and lodges are dudered in the 25-acre
digrict, a ae its Municipa Building and Pog Officeand sevard tobaocco factories. The
importance of these buildingsto the life of the city isreflected in thefr architecturd  sophidtication
and often monumentd sze. Even today, 1920s high-rise buUdings such as the Masonic BuUding
and the Hotel DanviUe dominate the DanviUe skyline, and dmctures in awide range of popular
late-nineteenth- and early-twentieth-century styles contribute to the visud interest and variety of

the city's dregtscapes

Justification of Criteria

The Downtown DawiUe Higtoric Didtrict is eUgible for Uding in the Nationa Regiger of
Historic Places under a number of criteria and arees of agnificance. The didtrict issgnificant
under Criterion A &s the principal higoric commercid canter for the City of DanviUe. The
didrict isds0 eUghblein the arees of govemment and socid histoly, as the govemmentd heart
of DawviUe ad as the locus of its principal fraterna and civic organizations  The didtrict
indudes two commercid didricts and individualJy notable bulJdings assodaed with DanviUes
African-American community, making it important in the area of black ehnic heritage In
addition, the didtrict embraces one of DanviUes sevard higtoric indudrid complexes-a group
of four or five ningteenth-century tobacco factories and a twentieth-century dothing factory-
rendering it sgnificant in the indudtrid higtory of the city. The architectura character of the
fifty contributing buUdings within the didrict (two previoudy Used buildings ad forty-eight
previoudy unUged buildings out of atotal of saventy-9x previoudy Uged and unlisted resources)
rendas it eJgible under Criterion C. Thedigtrict indudes arange of buUding types from modest
onedory sgorebuldngsto lavishly omamented skyscrapars, as welJ as represantatives of mod
laeningteenth- and early-twentieth-century  syles and buUding maerids The period of
ggnificance for the didrict extends from 1875, the condmction date of the earUest known
surviving buUding in the didrict, utU 1943, the eve of the post-war shift in commo-dd
devdopment to suburbben DarviUe. The didtrict is of datenvide sgnificanceto the higtory ad
architecture of Vfrginia.
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Higorical Badkgraind

DanviUe Vfrginia, is located a the southem end of Fittsylvania County in the southem Vfrginia
Fedmont. The original town-roughly corregoonding to the centrd pine of the Downtown
DawiUe Historic District-was laid out on the south Sde of the Dan River & Wynnes Fals, an
important regiond crossing. The rich battom lands of the Dan River ad its tributaries in
Vfrginiaand North Carolina condituted an important agricultural resource, and theriveritsaf
savad to trangoort agriculturd produce to maket. Asin other sedtions of the Vfrginia
Fedmont, tolbbacco devdoped as the principa cash crop of the Dan River valJey. For much of
the late eghteanth century, the valdey's farmers hauled thefr tobacoo overland to ingpection points
in Lynchburg or digant Petersburg, but in 1793 a group of tobacco planters petitioned the
Vfrginialegidaurefor the exdbUdmat of an ingpection warehouse & Wynne's Fallsand atown
to save as a uppot community for the warehouse” From 1793 through the ningteanth
century, the regiona expangon oftobaccoproduction and innovaions in its cultivation and
manufacture dimulated the devdopment of DanviUe.

During the 1790s Danville was "littie more then ati-ansshipmentpoint with agore, tavem, ad
tobacco warehouse [ad] few pamanat resdents.™” Devdopment begantopick up after 1800,
with the etabUdmat of apod office, an acadamy, and atoU bridge across the Dan." More
important were the activities of the Roanoke Navigation Company, which condmcted a cand
aound Wynne's Fas by 1818 and undatook improvemants up and down the DanMver that
gredtiy fadUtated the trangportation of tolbecoo to market®  Population esimatesfor the town
during the 1830svaryfromeabout 500 to 1,000 inhabitants” At theti me,DaviUe wis locked
in competition for the local tobacco trade with de town of MUton, N.C, located ten mdes
downsfreeam on the Dan. DawiUe enfrgpreneursfi rstagitated for ardJ connection to Richmond
in 1837, and thefr dream wasfinaly redJzed in 1856 with the completion of the Richmond and
DawUle Rafroad™" DanviUés populaion increased from 1,500 in 1850 to 3,700 in 1860, a
consquence of the ralJ connection to outdde markets, therisein tolacco prices during the late
1340s and 18505 ad the emagaxe of DawiUe as an important tobacoco manufacturing
ogta!”r Thetownof MUton, bypassed by the raifroads, became an economic backwater, and
conssquanty it presarves to this day the scade and amaospheare that characterized DanviUe until
tile 1850s

Tobacoo manufacturing in antebdJum Vrginia reqpondedt othe nation-wideri sein the popularity
of chewing tobacco. Consumers preferred bright leef tobacco, a vaiety that was welJ adgpted
to the s0ds of Fittsylvania and adjoining counties. Unlike heavier and darker varieties, bright
leaf was not conduciveto prizing, or compresson in wooden hogsheeds for shipmenttomearket.
Thefragi Utyof the bright lesf contributed to what became known as the DanwviUe Sygem of
tobacco trading, where the tobaoco leaves weare taken to the warehouse unprized and auctioned
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in loose pUes that engbled the buyer to more accuratdy determine the qualJty of his purdiese™?
Theriseof the new sysem and other devdopments contributed to Danville's growth asa tobacco
market, and conssguantly to the rise of its tobacoco manufecturing sector.  In 1836, Danville
upported two tobecoo factories, by 1860 the number hed grown to ten.”

During this period, DanviUes commercd district continued to devdop dong the town's
principa thoroughfare. Main Sfreet. An early Danville resdent, Thompson Coleman, hes |eft
a ddaled description of the town as it was when hefirst settied therein 1829, "The trade of
the place was in generd merchandise, like that of the country gtores of the presant period
[Caeman wes writing in 1885], and was modtly carried on by barter for country produce,
including whiskey and bacon, which wae dgples of this section of country a thet time.”
Thompson destribed a diversfied Main Sfreet with the shops of tradesmen such as talJors,
hatters oamekas ad tin- and Slveramiths mixed in among commercid establishments
Thompson lised aboutfi vedores tota, of which only two were "regular,” and he noted thet the
marke-h(Hise an open pod-supported dmcture, good in the center of Craghead Sfreat (neer the
eedan tip of the Downtown Danville Higtoric Didrict)."* A dUghtiy later account of the town
(1836) Udsnine miscdlaneous dores, three groceries, and two banks, in addition to the usud
complemat of tradesmen.” DawiUe was saved by two tavernsin 1836. Ore of thesewas
the house of entartanment kept by JamesM. Wiliams, Sr., located a the foot of Main Sfret
adjacatt to the bridge over the Dan and the cand of the Roanoke Navigation Company. The
other was the threestory  brick buUding known as the Red Cadtie, located on the northwest
come of Main and Union dregts™* The Red Cadtie wes probadly the ffrst of a long line of
hotds budt on this Ste,

Union Sfrest marked the wetem Umit of DanviUes antebdJum commerad digtrict. By the
18505 congestion on the lower reaches of Main Sfreet hed become a.concem. When the Roman
Eagle Lodge of Masons proposad to condmct a large brick temple on Craghead Sfregt in the
heat of the commerad district, the busness community urged the lodgeto build indeed on the
southeedt comer of Main and Union, fearing that othewise "the town would not goreed and the
houses for bugness be crowded. ™ The concem about crowding was largely a concam about
fire. Indead, ffre provedtobe the bane of DanviUes busness didtrict into the twentieth century.

DawiUe is known as the "Lagt Capitd of the Confederacy” owingto the brief sojoum of the
Confederate government after the evacuation of Richmond.  Despite DanvUI€s role during the
Confederacy'sfroubledlag days, the Civil War left the city virtualy unscathed. DawviUe
antered Recondmction with a compditive advantage over the devedated tobecco canters of
Richmond and Petersburg.  Warehouse sdes of tobacco in DanwviUe rose from 10.6 milion
pounds in 1870 to 30.5 milUon pounds in 1880, and DanviUe emaged as the dominant tobacco
maket in the bright leaf bdt of Vfrginia and North Carolina." Tobacco menufacturing
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continued its antebdlum growth. In 1878, DanviUe boeded twenty factories for the manufacture
of plug and twist tobacco, two for amoking tobacco, one sripping and demming edabUdmat,
and sevaty-three "houses concamed in reprizing, buying on order, etc."” One cbsarver
commented, "The manufecture of tobacco would ssam to be the modt lucrative busness in this
section."™

The megnitude of tobacco manufacture was reflected in the number and Sze of the city's tobbecco
factories. "Danville presentsa goectade dmod as anomeous as if a sguare mile of New Y ork

or Chicago were to be suddenly franslated to a picturesque valley," wrote one of the city's

boogtears in destribing the "magnificent, subdantid brick factories' that aowded the

downtown." Multi-gory factories for the prizing of tobecco after sde and prior to hipmat

were budt in the areato the south of Main Sfreat (meny are induded in the Danvdle Tobacco
Warehouse and Resdentid Distiict) and to the north dong High Sfreet.  Four (and possbly

remnants of afifth)of these "dry prizeries' dating to the late 1870s and early 1880s are located
in the Downtown Danville Historic Didtrict neer the intersection of High and Floyd Sfreets”

After the Civil War, as before, the labor force employed in the tobaoco factories was primarily
African-American."

In the early 18305 Danvill€e's tobacconids begen to channd some of thefr profitsinto tedUe

manufacturing. They formed Gas Brothers & Company, the Morotock Manufacturing
Company, and Riversde Cotton MUIs and erected large brick factories dong the river. By 1900,
textiles hed become a mgor componat of the DanvUle economy.  In 1907, the Morotock
Manufacturing Comperny congmcted a four-gtory factory a the southeest comer of Floyd and

Spring Sfreets. The company produced work claothing indluding the Bandana, New South, Chief,
Southem, BUc High Back, and Nationd overal lines, and employed 125 pasonsin 1913, "the
pick of [Danvilles] textile workers."™*

The economic dimulus of the expanding tobbacco and textile indudries spurred the growth of the
city's populaion after the Civl War. DanviUe's population increased from around 5,000 after
tiie war to over 10,000 in 1890, 16,000 in 1900, and 19,000 in 1910. After 1910 die populaion
rose more gradualJy, with the exception of the decade of the 1930s, when despite the Depresson
die population jumped from aboout 22,000 in 1930 to nearly 33,000 in 1940."

Danville's commerdd didtrict mirrored the city's economic good fortunes. The first Sanbom
mgp of DawiUe, daing to 1886, shows solid congmction on both 9des of Main Sfreet from
Bridge Sfreet neax theriverto just aiove Union Sfreet, adigance of nearly aquarter mUe The
more soarsdy devdoped block betwean Union and Floyd Sreets was occupied by the city's
leading hotes-thefive-storyArlington Hotd and the threesory Hotd Normandie (then under
colisgmction)-and the impressve United Sates Court House and Pogt Office.  Over the
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following decades, this block too became built-up, and commercid devdopmeant soreed into the
next block west, bawean Floyd and Ridge Sfrests. Commerad buUdingsaso gorang up dong
the cross dreats that connected Mam Sfret to the tobacoo warehouse and factory digtricts to the
north and south. By 1877, the pubUc market had movedf romCraghead Sfreet to Market Souare
on anewly-opened cross Sfreet. South Market Sfreet.” 1n 1890, the market moved again to the
rear wing of the new Municipad Budding on the norttwest comer of Main and Floyd Sfreets.
The market moved ore lagt timein the mid-1930s to its presant quarters, a large metd-9ded
building on Spring Sfreet.”

Banking baecame an increaangly important function of the downtown. By 1913 fivebanks hed
located in DanviUe with totd depodts exceading $4 milUon.™ Most banks occupied prime Sret
frontage in the more fashionable Main Sfreet commerdid blocks. Theintersection of Main and
Market Sreets devdoped into a popular banking comer.  In 1933, the American Nationd Bank
condmcted a consarvative modemigic buUding on the comer a 336 Main facing the First
Nationa Bank of DawiUe acrossthe dreet & 337-341 Man*' Another important downtown
activity was newspgper pubUshing.  The Danville Regider, pubUshed under that neme snce
1851, gravitated towards South Union Sfreet, where it shared office goace with TTie Bee after
1900*"

VaudevUle housss and theaters Sorang up in the downtown during the late ningteanth and early
twentieth centuries. Principa among these was the DanviUe Acedemy of Music, aso known as
the OparaHouse. Thissubgtantid brick budding of the late 1880s featured an auditorium with
multiple balconies. Later occupied by anumber of dnemas, the Academy of Music survivesin

truncated form as 539547 Main Sfreet. Movie thestas ware housed in the Hotd Ledand a

601-623 Main Sfredt, die Hotd DawviUe & 600 Main Sfrest, die Hippodrome Theefre & 215

North Union, and the Broedway Thedfre & 409 Main Sfreet. During the 1920s saverd of these
theatars were oparated by the Southem Amusemant Company.  In 1922 the compeany  built a
umptuous, terrarcottarfaced Neodasscd building a 549 Main Sfreet to sarve as alobby ad
office block assodaed with a thegter thet it tums out ws never built.*'

DanviUes machants and thefr employess were a diverse group during the late nineteenth and
ealy twentieth centuries.  The downtown clericd force wes largdy femde; the fire of Jenuary
3, 1920, that desfroyed an entfre block of busnessss dong Main Sfredt, left as many as 175
young femde clerks and office workers temporarily unemployed**  Probably the mgority of
the leading mearchants were long-term citizens of the city. Others camefromthe surrounding
countrydgde orfromother Vfrginia cities. A number oftiiecity's cdothiers were Jewish. Jaoob
Berman, bom in Poland, setied in DanvUle somewhat by accident, having st out from New
York to gat abudnessin MUton, N.C, after the Civil War. Sopping in DawiUe for lunch,
Berman was befriended by Danvdl€'s future mayor, Harry Wooding, who rented Beman retail
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Foee ad exabUdhad him in busness*' Anahe Jemsh dathier, Russan native Max Kaoplen,
fird caame to Davile in the eerly 18335 asa paddle enployed by a Batimare firm.  Liking
Whet he saw, he purdhasad a smdl 2ok of dry goods ad kitdhen ware ad reumed to Danvdle
to g adae TheKgien dahing gare aontinues toflourisha 214 Narth Union, and
Baman'sdaes a brikfradefr omits location & 406 Man**

DanvUIes African-American aammunity became adive in the coommarad life of the doantown
d a0 exly dae In fadt, theearlies knoan phaaygoh of a commerad buUding in Danwville,
bdJead to have bemn taken in the 18505 may $ow the Man Sred barba dxp of George
Davis afr eeblak*' Intheearly 18305 during a periad of African-American partidpation
in the governing of the dty, bladk mardnants rented twanty of the twanty<faur gdlsin the aty
markd on South Markd Sregt**  SmelJ blak conmeaad endaves dedgpad dang South
Makd Sred, wheare two bladk-onmned resaurants agrooary, ad a berbasxgp wee located in
188, ad in the 20 blodk of Narth Union Sred*' Bladk-omed busnesses dong Narth
Union in 1927 induded three retaurants two tala's two dmgdares a barba dxap, a doe
reoar shagp, two pod roams a thester, ad abank™ The thestar wes the Hippadrame Thedre
a 215 Nath Union, which survives in gredtly dterad form. The bark wes the DarmvUe Savings
Bak ad Tmd Campany, etabUdhad in 1919 ad located & 201 Narth Union snce 1924, Now
knomn & the Firg Sate Bank, the Danwville Savings Bak and Tmgt Canpany wes ane of anly
three blad<-omed Virgnia banks to westhe the dgoresson of the 19305 ad taday it is ae of
the ddet aontinuoudy gparated bladk banks in the commawedth”

Anahe impartant inditution in DanvUlés African-American acommunity wes the Southem Aid
Soady o Virginia, an insurance aampary basad in Richmaond.  1n 1916 the acampery budt the
Suthem Aid BuUding & 212216 Narth Ridge a dassca twogary bridk building. The
Sutham Aid Soaday daimed that "y fosering sdf-hdp ad thrift anag its pdicyhddes this
Canpay preatts didress e/ in the humblet hame during periads of disability and desth!"™
Andhe insrance agacy that caead to DamviUes African-American aammunity westhe
Ridmaod Bendiga Insranae Canpany. In the 19305 thisfirm oooupied a twoday bridk
budding a 518 Soring Sred that 2ands taday jud outdde the higaric digrid.

The gonmh of DavUle in the late nindeanth and early twantidh canturies d<o led toa
prdiferation of fratend ad avic aganizaions Many of these edablidhed thdr meding hels
in de domtomn area. In 1835 thae waeten "ssod ad benedat adas' in DawvUle The
ddeg braherhoad is the Ramnen Eage Ladge of Masons founded in 180, Sncethe 18505
the Ramen Eagle Laodge hes cooupied three buildings a the southeedt acoma of Main and Union
dreds aJ three buildings inaorpaated commerad ratd goace an the gound floor . The
presant Masonic BuUding, Danvillés fire kysragper, wes condiiided in 1921-192t odlesae
asatege of office goacein the doanton.”
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The Downtown Danville Historic Didtrict festures other buildings assodaed withfratemal and
civic organizations. These indlude the 1912 BUcss Home a 560 Main; the 1880 Moming Star

Elks Lodge a 608 High Sfreet (origindly buUt as a tobacco factory but usad snce the middle
of the twentietii century by Danvillesblack EUcs); andtiieca 1885 Pythian Building a& 119-121

South Union (remoddled in the early 1910s). The Sanbom mgps reved that the upperfl oor sof
many extant commerdid buildings were occupied by lesser, often unnamed organizations

Downtown Danville naturaly devdoped as the govemmenta center of the city. Asoriginaly

edabUshad in 1793, Danville was govaned by a group of twelve tmtees The tmlteesweare

upaosded by an dected council in 1833, with James Lanier as the town's first mayor. A

noteble chapter in the higtory of DanvUIes municipa govemment was a period in the early 1830s
when the city's black mgority dected amgority of the town council and sscured ather important
pods**  Black govemance, brought to an end by the notorious Danville Riot of 1883, was
followed by over a hdf-century of dominance by the white busness community.”

Danvdles aty govemmat gained luxurious quarters in 1873 with the congmction of a
Renassance Reviva-gyle City Court House on Patton Sfreet. Some of the goveamment functions
weare moved in 1890 to a new Romanesgue Reviva-style Municipa Budding on the northwest
comer of Main and Floyd dregts  In the 1920s both the 1873 and 1890 buildings were tom
down and the govemmeant was consolidated in the datdy Neocdassca-style Municipa Budding
of 1926-1927, condmcted on the dte of the 1873 buUding & 418 Paton Sfreet. A modem
concrete Courts and Jail Building wes congmcted next door in 19/5** Thefederd govemment
hes maintained a presence in Danville's downtown snce the completionin 1883 of a monumentd
Romanexue Reviva-gtyle Court House and Pogt Office on the 500 block of Main Sfreet. In
1932, the pogt office moved to its presant quarters, a modemidtic limestone-faced buUding & 700
Main Sfredt.

As Danville passd into the second quarter of the twentieth century, the deedy growth of the

downtown commercd didrict begen to decdeaae Thefl ushdecade of the 1920s contributed

two skyscrgpers to the downtown, the tenrgtory  1921-1922 Masonic Building and the tenrgtory

1926-1928 Hotd Danville, and in 1925 Danville ranked ffrst among Vfrginias mgor cities in
the number of building permits issued, but the dgaresson of the 1930s hed a dradtic effect on
the city'sretall trade and consequentiy on downtown constmction.” Totd retall sdesin thecity
droppedfrom$29.7 million in 1929 to $15.8 million in 1933. The gopard frade, concanfrated
in the downtown, suffered the most.™ Economic prosperity retumed after World Wer |1, but

burben commercid drips such as Highway 58 in North Danville 9phoned of f devdopment
from the canter city. Despite the suburban growth of the city, the downtown remains to the
present day the principa commercid and civic canter of DanviUe.
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Two hundred years of devdopment in Danville hes resulted in an architecture thet reflects the
commercid, indudrid, ad socid life of the city. The buildings of Danville'sdowntown are
the product of accompUdhed locd architects as wel as desgnarsfromdsaewheare in Virginia ad
the Eagdem United Sates  Other buUdings more utilitarian in character, are the work of
practical-minded local budders who employed gock forms and detads.  The buildings of the
downtown digplay arange of yles, condmction techniques, and maeids thet is notablein the
dae Togeha these buildings form hisoric Sfregtscgpes of a didinctive character that arises
from the acarelionary growth of the downtown over an undulaing terrain.  Curving and doping
dredts, axid redJgnmants and dosed pargoectives aregte a spaid complexity reminiscant of a
European city.

Endnates

1 The project leading to this Nationd Regiser nominaion was initiated by the City of Danville
and the Vfrginia Departmant of Historic Resources (VDHR). A number of individuds m tiiese
two agandesasdded the project. Geradd L. Fischer of the Danville Community Devdopment
and Enginearing Department provided guidance throughout the project, as did David Edwards
of the VDHR. JuUe Vosmik and Jossph White of the VDHR hdped with the particulars of
project logidics and in the computerization of data. Others who assgted the project included
DawiUe higorian Gary Grant, the DawUle Public Library, the DawiUe Area Chamber of
Commerce, the DawviUe Musaum of Fine Arts and History, tiie VfrginiazNorth Carolina
Redmont Genedlogicd Society, and the Vfrginia Sate Library.

2. Pollock, Illusrated Sketch Book of Danville, Virginia, pp. 20-27.

3. Virginia Sae Library, Board of Public Works Pgpers Danvilleand WythevUIe TumpUce
Field Notes (1827).

4. Pollock, pp. 134-135; Bmbaker, ThelLast Capital, p. 15.
5. Fountam, Danville, A Pictorial History, pp. 18-19.

6. Romen Eagle Lodge, pp. 43-45; Bishfr & al, Architeas and Buildersin North Carolina, pp.
150, 161

7. All of thesebuildings are pictured in Fountain.
8. Fountain, pp. 58, 107; Sanbom maps
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9. Sanbom maps.
10. Closs, "Hotd Danville" p. 7.3.

1

Fountain, p. 73.

12. WelJs The VirginiaArchiteas, Pollock, pp. 181-182; Isaacs The City of Danville, Virgima,
p. 4.

13
14.
15.

Issecs p. S0.
ftid., p. 61
Chambers Lynchburg. An Architecturd History, p. 359; WelJs

16. WPA, Virginia. A Guide to the Old Dominion, p. 597.

17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.

25.
59.

26.
21.
28.

Segd, The Roats of Southem Didtinctiveness, pp. 27-28.
ftid., p. 29.

ftid., pp. 69-30.

Ibid., p. 30; Grat & al, Danville Tobacoco Warehouse and Resdentid District, p. 7.3.
Fountain, p. 21; Martin, A new and comprehensve gazetteer of Virginia, p. 261.

Segd, pp. 55, 56, ad 108.

Ibid., p. 105.

Ujid., pp. 122-125; Mainwaring, Community in Danville, Virginia, 1880-1963, pp. 57-58.
Martin, p. 261; Amold, Hisory ofthe Tobacco Indudry in Virgimafrom1860 to 1894, p.

Pollock, pp. 20-27.
Martin, p. 261.
Pollock, pp. 20-27.
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29. Roman Eagle Lodge, p. 43.

30. Smitii, Afi7/ on the Dan, p. 8.

31. Danville as a Tobacoo Ceanter, p. 2.
32. Void.

33. Paollock, p. 181.

34. 1886 Sanbom megp of Danville. These factories are located & 539 High Sfreet, 543-547
High Sfreet, 608 High Sfreet, and 552 Soring Sfreet. A fifth tobecco factory dands a 224-226
North Union Sfredt.

35. Segd, pp. 129-131

36. Iszecs p. 62; Harvey, Historical and Commerad Higory ofthe State of Virgima, pp. 236-
237. The Riversde Overal Company, anather clothing manufacturer located in the didtrict,
acqufred and expanded an 1870stobacco factory a 543-547 High Sfregt during the early
twertieth century.

37. Bureau of Population, Economic Survey of Danville, Virginia, p. 5. Growthin the city's
populaion during the 1930s may be due to an influx of farm laborers digilaced by the
Dqg)resson.

38. Bears, Topographicd Map of Danville, Virginia; PoUock, p. 136.
39. Closs, p. 8.1.

40. Issecs p. 16.
41. The Danville Regiger, Feruary 19, 1934.

42. PoUock, pp. 105-106; Isaecs p. 32.

43. DawviUe Higtorical Society. Eighteemh Annua Waking Tour, p. 12.
44. TJe Danville Regiger, January 9, 1920.

45. Fountain, p. 78.
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46. Interview with Albert Koplen, grandson of Max Koplen, DanviUe, Va., January 30, 1993.
Jeoob Berman and Max Koplen joined a Jewish community thet hed bean esabUdhed in DawviUe
during the antebdlum period.

47. Fountain, pp. 18-19.

48. Pollock, p. 86.

49. Danville City Directory, 1898-1899, p. 16.

50. MiUer, Danville, Virginia City Directory, 1927, p. 533.

51. WPA, p. 83.

52. TTie Danville Regiger. Rotogravure Section (ca. 1930).

53. Roman EagleLodge, p. 45; The Danville Regiger, January 9, 1920.
54. Daboney, Virginia, T4e New Dominion, p. 391.

55. Manwaring, pp. 122, 207.

56. CahiU ad Grant, Victorian Danville, pp. 93-94.

57. Closs, p. 8.1.

58. Virginia Sate Flanning Board, Notes on Danville, Virginia, pp. 27-29.
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9. Mgor Bibliographical References

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in prepaing this form on ane or more
continuation shedts)

Previous documentation on fUe (NPS)
prelUminary determination of individud Ugting (36 CFR 67) hes bean requested.
previoudy Uded in the Nationd Regider
previoudy delemined eJgble by the Nationd Register
desgnated a Nationa Higtoric Landmark
recorded by Higtoric American BuUdings Survey  #
recorded by Historic American Enginesring Record #

Primary Location of Additional Data
X Sae Higoric Presarvation Office
Other Sate agacy
Federd agency
Locd govemmat
Universty
Ctiier
Name of repository:

10. Geographica Data

Acreage of Property goprox. 25 acres
UTM References (Place additiond UTM references on a continuation shest)

Txme Eaging Northing  Zone Eagling Northing

1 17 643650 4050340 4 17 643510 4049870

2 17 643980 4050200 5 17 643420 4050110

3 17 643830 4049910 6 17 643490 4050250
See continuation shedt.

Verba Boundary Description (Describe the ) oundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)
Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were sdected on a continuation shedt.)
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The bomdaries of the Downtown Danville Historic Digtrict are portrayed on the accompanying
1:200-scde mep entitied "Downtown DanvUIe Historic District,” besed on City of DanviUetax
mgos  Essantial)y, the boundaries follow property lines and dredts to endose an area of roughly
25 aores.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The man criterion for the incluson of historic (pre-1944) resourcesinthe Downtown DanwviUe
Higtoric Digtrict isthe role those resources playwi in the commercid and civic life of DanviUes
downtown. A sscondary qualJfying concem isthe architecturd character and integrity of those
resources and thefr immediate surroundings. Consequentiy, an effort hes bean medet oindude
blocks of contiguous commercid and civic buUdings that are dudered dong Main Sfreet (the
principad commerdd corridor) and intersecting Sreets, and dso moreisolated, outiying buUdings
of outdanding architecturd quellty or historic importance. The outcome is afour-armed form
with Main Sfreat as the goine and ams extending dong North Union Sfregttoindude the notable
group of early commeraid buUdings on the 200 block of thet Sfreet; dong South Union Sfreet
to indude the 1927 Municipa BuUding & 418 Patton Sfreet; dong North Floyd Sfreet to indude
acomplex of ningleanth-centurytobaccofactories, the 1916 Southern Aid BuUding, and the 1935
City Maket; and dong South Floyd Sfreet to indude die 1917 Chesgpeeke & Potomec
Tdephone Company. The 300 block (north 9de) of Main Sres—the last block of contiguous
higoric buUdings as ane heeds downhiU towards the Dan Rive—andhars the eest ed of the
distiict. Thewes end of die digtrict is anchored by die 1932 DawviUe Pog Office. The 300
(south 9de) and 500 (north sde) blocks of Main Sfreet have been omittedf romthe district owing
to the presance of large modem buildings and extengve parking lots.

Severd buUdings that are adjacant to the didtrict but have been exduded deserve comment. On
the 100 block (wet sde) of South Ridge Sfreet is the higtoric Odd Felows Building.  This
building would have bean induded in the digtrict with other buUdings assodaed with prominent
civic organizations, but as an dtered dngle budding surrounded by parking lots and a busy
thoroughfare, it was fdt thet incluson could nat bejustified. On the 600 block (north dde) of
High Sfreet are High Sfrest Baptis Church and a row of worker housng that have been
excluded. Although these buildiingsare of sufficient architecturd interest and integrity, thefr
exdugon isjudtified by thefr higtoric fimctions, which do nat fit the commercid, civic, ad
indudtrid themes of the district. These buUdings may conditute part of another, principaly
resdentid, historic digrict extending to the north of the Downtown DarwviUe Higtoric Didtrict.



Downtown Danville Higtoric Digtrict Danville (City). Va.

County and Sate
11 Form Prepared By
nameftitie J. Danid Pezzoni
organization Preservation Technologies Inc. date April 12. 1993
dregt & numba PO Box 7825 tdephone (703" 366-7657

city or tovn Roanoke date YA Zzip code 24019

Additional Doocumentation
Submit the following items with the completed form:

Continuation Sheds
Maps
A USGSme (75 o 15 minute szies indicating the prapaty’s location.
A skeaeh mg far higaric didrids ad prapaties having large aoreege o numaraus
resources
Phaoggphs
Representative black and white phatogrgphs of the property.
Additional items (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additiond iteams)

Propaty Owng

(Complete this item a the request of the SHPO or FPO.)

neme

Sfreet & number tdephone

city or town date Zip code

Papawork Reduction Act Statement: Thisinformation isbeing collected for gopUcaions to the
Nationd Regiger of Historic Placestonominate properties for Uging or detlermine digibiUty for

listing, to Ud properties, and to amad exidting listings. Response to this request is required to

obtain a benefit in accordance with the Nationad Historic Presarvaion Act, as anadad (16

U.S.C. 470 & s=0.). Edimated Burden Statemat:  Public reporting burden for this form is
esfimated to avarage 181 hours per regoonse including the time for reviewing ingdmctions,

gathaing and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Dfrect commeants
regarding this burden esimate or any agpect of this form to the Chief, Adminidfrative Sarvices
Division, Nationd Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and die Office
of Manegeamat ad Budget, Pgpawork Reductions Project (1024-0018), Washington, DC

20503.
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PHOTGE=APHS

1 1 Downtown DawiUe Higtoric Digtrict (same for al photogrgphs).
2. City of DawUle, Vfrginia (same for al photogrgphs).
3. Photogrgpher: J. Danid Pezzoni; Print maker: Eugene B. Barfidd
4. Date of photogrgph: February, 1993.
5. Location of negative Vfrginia Sate Library, Richmond (same for all photographs).
6. The Masonic BuUding, 106 S. Union St., & the heart of thedigtrict.
Dfrection of view: esstward.
7. The number of the photogrgph gopearsa the top of each heeding adis
keyed to the district mgp (same for dJ photographs).

2. 4. February, 1993,
6. The downtown area of DanvUle as viewed from the north sde of the Dan River.
Dfrection of view: southward.

3. 4. February, 1993.
6. Main Sfret; contributing and noncontributing buUdings Dfrection of view: westward.

4. 4. January, 1993.
6. North Union Sfreet. Dfrection of view: southward.

5. 4. February, 1993,
6. 539 High St., Weddon E. WilUiamson Tobaoco Factory (on |eft);
ad 543547 High St., J. T. SovaJ Tobaoco Factory (center and right).
Dfrection of view: eestward.

6. 4. January, 1993.
6. 125 S. Union St., Rorer A. James Memoria BuUding (on left); 418 Petton St.,
DawiUe Municipad BuUding (in center); and 120-126 S. Union &. (on right).
Dfrection of view: southward.

7. 4. January, 1993.
6. 700 Main St., DawUle Pog Office. Dfrection of view: northward.

8. 4. January, 1993.
6. 49 Main St., Southem Amusamant BuUding (on left); 600 Main St., Hotel DanviUe
(in center); and 560 Main St., BJcsHome (on right). Dfrection of view: westward.
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4. January, 1926
6. B0 Man K., BJs Hoame Dfretion of vienv: natheegward.

4. January, 1996
6. 312 Man Sred, J. A. Davis BuUding (noncontiibuting, an left); ad 310 Man &,
Kingoff Building (contributing, anr ight).Dfredion of viev. nathwestwerd.

4. February, 1993
6. 212216 N. Ridge &., Sauthem Aid BuUding Dfrettion of view. southeeswerd.

4. January, 1926
6. 113N. Makd . Dfretion of vienv: wetward.

4. January, 1926
6. 220208 N. Union . Dfretion of vienv: narthesgweard.

4. February, 1923
6. 2028 N. Union &., handgparaed has medanism on saaondfloor of 206.
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The heavy line indicates the didirict bounderies

The dashed lines indicate the boundaries of
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The number and dfrection of photogrgohs accompanying
the district report are indicated by triangles.
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Summary

The Downtown Danville Historic District was listed in the Virginia Landmarks Register and the
National Register of Historic Places in 1993. The district’s period of significance extends from 1875 to
1943, and areas of significance are Architecture, Commerce, Government, Ethnic Heritage: Black,
Social History, and Industry. This district is listed at the statewide level of significance. Herein, this
2019 Nomination Update amends the contributing status of one of the commercial resources in the
Downtown Danville Historic District that was listed as noncontributing due to what was believed at the
time to be non-historic alterations to the building’s fagade. Originally, the building in question featured
a Neoclassical brick fagade with a parapet balustrade and cornice, as noted in the NRHP nomination and
illustrated by a 1903 rendering. The upper two stories of the existing fagade, which was believed to be a
post-World War II modification and therefore postdating the period of significance, features scored
concrete, while a non-historic storefront is on the first story. However, upon further investigation,
historic evidence was found that places the existing scored concrete fagade within the period of
significance. A 1939 newspaper article lists the light fixtures, windows, and doors along with other
items for sale from the old Register and Bee Building (115 S. Union Street) and announces a new Dan
Theatre will begin operating out of the building in 1940. Additionally, a 1941 photograph of the
building’s exterior depicts the scored concrete fagade. In Section 7, the inventory entry for this building
has been changed from noncontributing to contributing, as the building is associated with the district’s
areas of significance in Commerce and Ethnic Heritage: Black and dates to the period of significance.
The resource counts in Section 5 have also been updated to reflect the contributing status of the
building. The historic district boundaries and areas of significance have not changed as a result of this
update.

Section 5. Classification

Number of Resources within Property

Contributing Noncontributing

_49 _ 25 buildings
_ 0 0 sites

_ 0 0 structures
0 0 objects

49 25 Total
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Section 7. Description

Inventory
The following is the corrected inventory entry for the resource affected by this additional
documentation.

115-117 S. Union St. Register and Bee Building. 1899-1904. 108-0111-0066. CB.

This two-story brick building is actually two buildings joined under a single concrete fagade on the
upper two stories. The facade has vertical and horizontal scorings and dates to 1940, when the Dan
Theatre opened. The extant rectangular windows on the fagade’s second story do not appear in a
photograph (see below) of the building taken immediately after it was converted to house the Dan
Theatre. The windows have metal-framed sash with stacked horizontal lights, and are of a type that was
commonly used during the 1940s-1960s. Spacing, size, and shape of the window openings, as well as
their alignment with windows on the north elevation, suggest that the current openings are in the same
places as the original windows. Patching of the concrete fagade also suggest the windows were installed
after the concrete cladding.

The marquee and theatre signage that once identified the building are no longer extant. The current
storefront has brick veneer, large, single-light display windows flanking a recessed entry that is in the
same location as the historic theatre entrance, a corner entry with a flush metal door, and a mansard-type
roof with wood shingles. The design and materials suggest the storefront was in place by the early
1980s. Original stretcher-bond brickwork and segmental-head door and window openings (most bricked
up) are apparent on the north side elevation; a later rear addition, noted in the 1993 nomination, remains
extant.

The two altered buildings that came to comprise the Dan Theatre are of approximately the same age.
The building at 115 South Union was constructed between 1899 and 1904 for the Register Publishing
Company and was known as the Register and Bee Building. Danville’s principal historic (and present)
newspaper was published in the building. The printing press was located in the basement, offices
occupied the ground floor, and the second floor was used for composing. Damage sustained from the
Masonic Temple Fire of January 3, 1920, combined with a desire for more sumptuous quarters,
prompted the newspaper’s move down the street to the Rorer A. James Memorial Building (108-111-
0070). The Register and Bee Building originally had a Neoclassical facade with a parapet balustrade and
cornice, round- and jack-arched-head windows on the front, and a pedimented surround for the angled
corner entry.

Boatwright Brothers Company was the early and probably original occupant of 117 South Union. The
building was constructed between 1899 and 1904, possibly after 115 South Union. Boatwright was a
printing and stationary plant. In 1910 the building was occupied by a bookstore. Later a furniture store
was located in the building, and in 1920 an automobile showroom occupied the address.
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Section &. Statement of Significance

The Downtown Danville Historic District was listed in the Virginia Landmarks Register and the
National Register of Historic Places in 1993. The historic district is significant at the statewide level
under Criteria A and C in the areas of Architecture, Commerce, Government, Social History, Industry,
and Ethnic Heritage: Black. The period of significance begins in 1875 with the construction of the Pace
Building—the oldest building in the district—and ends in 1943, on the eve of the postwar shift in
commercial development to suburban Danville.

In the district’s 1993 nomination, the building at 115-117 South Union Street was listed as
noncontributing due to substantial exterior alterations that were believed to postdate the period of
significance. Upon further research, however, it was discovered that the original window openings were
infilled, and the existing scored concrete facade was installed by 1940, when the building became a
theatre. Changing commercial uses for the two buildings at 115-117 S. Union Street was a well-
established pattern for each resource, and in keeping with the evolving commercial character of
Danville’s downtown. The installation of the scored concrete facade likely served two purposes: first, to
infill now-unnecessary windows and second, to create an impression of modernity. The smooth concrete
surface with a combination of incised vertical and horizontal lines is in keeping with tenets of the then-
burgeoning Modern architecture movement as it eliminated historical references and architectural
embellishments that, at the time, would have been considered unnecessary. The theatre owners also
likely sought to convey an image of modernity and up-to-date technology suggestive of an enjoyable
theatrical experience. Of important note is that the theatre provided a venue for movies featuring
performers of color.

The theatre opened at the height of Virginia’s Jim Crow segregation era, when performers of color
rarely were shown in movies considered to be mainstream (meaning that the movies were targeted to
white audiences) and when audiences of color were permitted to view movies only from segregated
areas, typically a balcony accessed via a separate entrance from the theatre’s main entry. The former
Dan Theatre therefore is directly associated with two of the historic district’s areas of significance,
Commerce and Ethnic Heritage: Black.

The alterations to convert the two buildings at 115 and 117 S. Union Street occurred during the district’s
period of significance. The scored concrete fagade is intact and in relatively good condition overall. In
addition to the concrete facade, the building also retains other historic features, including its flat roof,
two-part commercial block form, and intact north elevation.

Since the 1940s, however, and likely as late as c. 1980, the building’s integrity has been diminished by
loss of the marquee and theatre sign, installation of a new storefront that spans both buildings, and
reopening of five windows on the second story. The second-story windows are a reversible alteration
and are considered less detrimental to the building’s overall integrity of design, workmanship, and
materials.
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The storefront materials are typical of mid- to late-20™ century commercial design in Virginia’s smaller
cities, with the mansard-type roof especially suggestive of a 1970-1980 date, when that roof type
enjoyed a brief renaissance on commercial buildings, albeit applied in an ahistoric design.

The availability of historic photographs, however, along with retention of the theatre entrance’s general
form with a centered entry and a separate entry on the canted corner, provide evidence that at least
rough integrity of design has been retained, although the integrity of workmanship and materials on the
facade’s first story have been lost. The property also has integrity of association, as noted above, and of
location and setting within a historic downtown commercial district. The property’s integrity of feeling
is partially intact as the commercial block on which the former theatre is located has seen few major
architectural changes in recent decades and the property itself has remained in commercial use. Overall,
therefore, the buildings at 115-117 S. Union Street retain sufficient integrity to be contributing to the
historic district.

SECTION 11: Form Prepared By

name/title: Kate Kronau & Katherine C. Gutshall
organization: Hill Studio, PC

street & number: 120 Campbell Avenue SW

city or town: Roanoke state: Virginia zip code: 24011
e-mail: kgutshall@hillstudio.com

telephone: 540-342-5263

date: July 2019




NPS Form 10-900-a

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number Additional Documentation

Page 6

OMB No. 1024-0018

Downtown Danville Historic District
2019 Update

Name of Property
City of Danville, VA

County and State
N/A

Name of multiple listing (if applicable)

Photographs

Photo 1: 115-117 S. Union Street, view SE (2019)
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Photo 2: Historic Rendering, 115 S. Union Street, ca. 1903
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Photo 3: Historic Photograph, 115-117 S. Union Street, 1941
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Articles Yo1 Sale 58

For Sale: Metal Celling Light Fixtures,
store fixtures, window weights, plate
glass, glass windows, door slashes
and other i{tems, {n old Register
Building on South Union street
wnere new Dan Theater wlll operate
after Jan. 1, 1840. Call at old Reg-
ister Pullding, for Information.
Must be gold immediately, Bbr2

For Sale: One Baby Bed, One High
i chair, good as new. Cheap. 73 Wash-
Ington Ave., Schoolfield, Va. 8rh2

IXalAear b P N S e - e SR )

Newspaper Article 1: October 10, 1939 article in The Bee advertising items for sale from the building’s original
facade (Newspapers.com)
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Newspaper Article 2: July 3, 1941 article in The Bee advertising the movie on the marquee in the historic photo

(Newspapers.com)




Virginia Dept. of Historic Resources

Location Map for 115-117 S. Union
Street

Downtown Danville Historic District
City of Danville, VA

DHR No. 108-0111

/IBuilding Location

A Title: Date: 7/30/2019

DISCLAIMER:Records of the Virginia Department of Historic Resources (DHR) have been gathered over many years from a variety of sources and the representation
Feet depicted is a cumulative view of field observations over time and may not reflect current ground conditions.The map is for general information purposes and is not

intended for engineering, legal or other site-specific uses. Map may contain errors and is provided "as-is". More information is available in the DHR Archives located at
DHR’s Richmond office.
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e (ARPA) and Code of Virginia §2.2-3705.7 (10). Release of precise locations may threaten archaeological sites and historic resources.
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Memo to File

Correspondence

The Correspondence consists of communications from (and possibly to) the nominating authority, notes
from the staff of the National Register of Historic Places, and/or other material the National Register of
Historic Places received associated with the property.

Correspondence may also include information from other sources, drafts of the nomination, letters of
support or objection, memorandums, and ephemera which document the efforts to recognize the
property.
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COMMONWEALTH of VIRQINIA

- ¢ Mile Diradtr Department of Historic Resources TOD: By 736181
221 Governor Stregt 4 Telephon*804) 786-3143
BicHmonf® Vireinia 2948 P FAX: (80412254261

April 27, 1993

John S Sorenson, Realty Acquisition Specialist JUL 1 4193
Realty AcquisitionDivision, Office of Real. Estate

475 L' Enfant Plaza, SN NATI ONAL
Washi ngt on, DC 20260- 6430 REQ STER

RE ttntown Danville Historic District, Danvill”™ Virginia |

Dear M. Sorenson:

V¢ are pleased to infom you that the Dovmiovm Danville Historic District,
Virginia, inwhichaUnited States Post Officeis|ocated, will be considered for
nomnation tothe National Register of Historic Places. The National Register
is the Federal Government's official list of historic properties worthy of
preservation. Listing inthe National Register provides recognition and assists
In preserving our Nation's heritage. Enclosed i s acopy of thecriteria under

whi ch properties are eval uated.

Listinﬂ i nthe National Register provides the follow ng benefits to federally
owned historic properties:

*Consideration i ntheplanning for federal IX assisted projects. Section
106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 provides that the
Advisory Council on Historic Preservation be given an opportunity to
conment on projects affecting such properties.

*Consi deration of historic values inthedecisiontoissue a surface coal
mning permt where coal islocated, inaccordance with the Surface M ning

and Control Act of 1977.

[f you wish to conment on whether the property should be nonminated tothe
National Register, please do so by June 16, 1993.

Sincerely yours.

Hurijc. Miller
Statd Historic Preservation Officer

Encl osure
HIM sdm

Encl osure
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James T. Coe, Director «JuL - N

Office of Real Estate, Facilities Department

United States Post Office NAItUMMt

475 L'Enfant Plaza, SW REGISTER

Washington, D.C.20260-6430
RE: Downtown Danville Historic District, Danville, Virginia

Dear Mr. Coe:

V& are pleased toinform youthat the Downtow Danville Historic District,
Virginia, i nwhich aUnited States Post Office i slocated, will be consideredfor
nomnation t ot heNational Register of Historic Places. The National Register
is the Federal Governnent's official list of historic properties worthy of
preservation. Listing i nthe National Register provides recognition and assists
In preserving our Nation's heritage. Enclosed i s acopy of thecriteria under
whi ch properties ar e eval uated.

Listi nﬁ_i nt he National Register provides thefollow ng benefits to federally
owned historic properties:

*Consideration i n the planni ng for federally assisted projects. Section
106 of t he National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 provides that the,
Advisory Council on Historic Preservation be given an opportunity t o
comment on projects affecting such properties.

*Consideration of historic values i nthe decisiontoissue asurface coal
mning permt where coal i slocated, i naccordance with the Surface M ning

oud Control Act of 1977.

[f youw sh t oconment on whether the propertg should be nonmnated to the
National Register, please doso by June 16, 1993.

Sincerely yours.

lc. Mller
Itat® HistoricPr
State Historic Preservation Officer
Encl osur e
HIM sdm

Encl osure
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Hugh C. Miller, Director Department of Historic Resources TDD: (804) 786-1934
221 Govana Sred Telephone (804) 786-3143
| Richmond, Virginia 23219 f FAX: (804) 225-4261

July 4, 198
y RCEVED
Ms Card SwU JUL 1 4198
Nationd Regde
Nationd Park Sarvice SQ(T;FSN;IQIFE

80 Nardi Capitd Sred
Washingaon, DC 20001

RE: Domtomn DarmUeHigoric Didrict, City of Danville Virginia

Dexr Ms Shull:

The endosad namination, Doatoan Danwville Higoric Digrict, City of Danville Virgnia,
is sdomitted for indusaon an the Nationd Regsea of Hidaric Plaoces  This namination hes
ben consderad by the Sate Review Board ad there have bean no ovna dgjetions
recavad. Copies of letasto the fedad Pog Office offidals are endosd.

Shauld yau have any quetions pleese do na hestate to aontadt me

Snozdy,

James Chridian Hill
Nationd Regda Assdant

Endoaure
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